
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

May 7, 2019 Revised 5-7-19

Work Session – 5:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 







   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 
TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

                                 
 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2019 
      

 
5:00pm 

 
CIVIC CENTER 
BOARD ROOM 

7200  HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 
 

 
 

1. AGENDA REVIEW .............................................................................. SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
2. OTHER DISCUSSION   ............................................................................   BOARD MEMBERS 

 
 
 



 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 

TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 

                                 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2019 

    7:00 P.M. 
REVISED 5-7-19 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION, CLOSED SESSION AND REGULAR 

MEETING   
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MAY 7, 2019 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$764,608.57 
 

5. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
1. 2ND READING OF RESOLUTION 2019-20, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-484, 

PROHIBITION OF RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENT 
(1ST READING HELD AT THE APRIL 2, 2019 REGULAR MEETING) 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
1. 1ST READING OF RESOLUTION 2019-06, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-486, AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE XXVII OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO ADD THE 
CONDITIONAL REZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
2. REQUEST OF LIGHTSPEED COMMUNICATIONS. LLC TO ASSIGN AND TRANSFER 

THEIR METRO ACT PERMIT TO METRO FIBERNET, LLC 
 

3. REQUEST TO APPROVE SECOND AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY 
ROAD COMMISSION FOR LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$304,356.93 TO BE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-446-000-818-022 CONTINGENT 
UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  May 7, 2019 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

 
4. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK LEGAL 

ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
1594 ANDREA ST. AND 1499 GROVE RD. IN THE AMOUNT OF $20,000.00 BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 
 

5. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK LEGAL 
ACTION TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE DRUG HOUSES BY PADLOCKING LOCATED 
AT 5900 BRIDGE RD. #408 AND 418 VILLA DR. IN THE AMOUNT OF $20,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
6. REQUEST TO ADOPT A RECOMMENDED NATIVE PLANT SPECIES LIST 

 
7. RESOLUTION 2019-21, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR OBERUN 5K 

ON JUNE 21, 2019 
 

8. RESOLUTION 2019-22, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR “RUN SCREAM 
RUN” 5K, 10K, AND KID’S MILE RUN ON OCTOBER 12, 2019 

 
9. REQUEST TO APPROVE AMENDMENT TO THE WASHTENAW COUNTY BROWNFIELD 

REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT GRANT 
AGREEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 19, 2019 CR #51312 FOR 1150 MIDWAY  
 

10. BUDGET AMENDMENT #8 
 

 
   

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
 
1. REQUEST OF MIKE SARANEN, HYDRO OPERATIONS FOR APPROVAL TO WAIVE THE 

FINANCIAL POLICY AND PURCHASE A NEW RAM 1500 PICK UP FROM VANDYKE 
DODGE RAM IN THE AMOUNT OF $20,754.00 TO BE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #595-
595-000-985-000 CONTINGENT UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  

    
  
  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION MEETING 

 
 

 
 

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk Lovejoy Roe, Treasurer Doe 
                                        Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe, 
                                                         Monica Ross-Williams, and  
                                                         Jimmie Wilson, Jr. (arrived at 5:06PM) 
 
Members Absent: none 
 
Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters 
 

1. REQUEST TO ENTER INTO CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS CONTRACT 
NEGOTIATIONS WITH YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP FIREFIGHTERS UNION LOCAL 
1830 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
go into Closed Session to Discuss Contract Negotiations with Ypsilanti Township 
Firefighters Union Local 1830. 
 
Jarrell Roe               Yes                Eldridge              Yes        Ross-Williams             Yes 
Lovejoy Roe            Yes                Stumbo               Yes        Doe                               Yes 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Board went into Closed Session at 5:01PM. 
 
The Closed Session concluded at 5:35PM. 
 
 

2. AGENDA REVIEW………………….………….…..……….SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Supervisor Stumbo apologized for the person who used vulgar language at our 
previous meeting. She said if people continue to get agitated and begin to act 
inappropriately or use inappropriate language she would call them out of order 
and if that didn’t defuse the problem she  would ask for a recess until it was no 
longer an issue. She said that it was the first time it has ever happened in a 
meeting and she hoped that it would not happen again. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 2, 2019 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 
MEETING. 

 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked for two changes in the April 2, 2019 meeting. Clerk 
Lovejoy Roe said she would make those changes. 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 16, 2019 IN THE  

AMOUNT OF $1,010,175.25 
2. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR MARCH 2019 IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $57,067.56 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR FEBRUARY 2019 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,112.50 

 
C. MARCH 2019 TREASURER’S REPORT 

 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE – given later in the meeting 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 3 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 1830 UNION WITH A TERM ENDING DATE OF 
DECEMBER 31, 2019 

 
2. REQUEST APPROVAL OF UPDATED SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY AND CELL 

PHONE POLICY TO BE INCLUDED IN THE TOWNSHIP POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 
Trustee Jarrell Roe questioned if it was clear in the manual that employees can 
use their phone or social media when they are on their lunch hour.  
 
Trustee Ross Williams questioned if the employee received a text during work 
hours were they allowed to respond to it.   
 
Karen Wallin, Generalist stated that employees may use their phones during 
lunch. She said many employees have young children or elderly parents they care 
for and they are going to need to see those texts or take those calls.  She said we 
do not want their work to be interrupted for a long period of time. Ms. Wallin said 
they should not be on their phone talking and texting when they should be 
working. She said if a phone call needs longer attention the employee would need 
to have it approved by their supervisor and they should leave their workstation to 
complete the call.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo said the manual includes a section on personal electronic 
devices. She said it states that although discouraged, they were aware that 
sometimes the use of personal devices were sometimes necessary. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated if employees post on social media that they were 
employed by the Township, and post things that could offend people, they need 
to state their opinions are not those of the Township. 
 
Trustee Ross Williams questioned if our employees social media posts were 
regulated by the Township. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 4 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that as long as employee’s comments on social media 
did not adversely affect the Township there would not be an issue. 
 
Deputy Clerk Stanfield said her opinion was that if you are on your Facebook page 
and you are commenting on a political item or someone’s personal situation she 
feels people should understand that’s a personal opinion. 
 

3. REQUEST APPROVAL OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE WASHTENAW 
COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FOR AN 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT GRANT IN A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT 
OF $26,899.00 AND TO APPROVE THE WASHTENAW COUNTY 
BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ENVIRONMENTAL 
ASSESSMENT GRANT AGREEMENT 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that we are confident that we will get the $15,000.00 
grant but there were other costs above this amount. She said we would know on 
May 2, 2019 what amount the Washtenaw County Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority would provide for the grant. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated this was coming from a Grant through Urban County for 
the Community Center flooring.  She said the money comes from HUD and they 
require that we do this testing.  
 

4. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH TETRA TECH FOR A PHASE I 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT UPDATE AND HAZARDOUS BUILDING 
MATERIALS SURVEY FOR THE COMMUNITY CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF  
$28,701.00  TO BE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 212-970-000-976-008 
CONTINGENT ON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT  

  
5. REQUEST APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH FRIENDS OF RUTHERFORD 

POOL IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 101-956-
000-882-004 WITH TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that this is a matching donation so Rutherford Pool will 
receive $10,000.0 for our $5,000.00 donation. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 5 
 
 

6. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 
LEGAL ACTION TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE DRUG HOUSES BY 
PADLOCKING LOCATED AT 6934 POPLAR IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director stated the resident who was selling heroin and fentanyl 
from this home was the son of the homeowner. Mr. Radzik stated the resident 
was selling drugs at the home but also would meet at various locations to conduct 
drug sales. Mr. Radzik said the resident was arrested and when they searched this 
home, they found large quantities of fentanyl. Mr. Radzik said the resident has an 
open active felony narcotics trafficking case pending against him.  
 

7. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 
LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1474 ECORSE RD. IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director stated that in 2016 the owner of this building did not 
register it with the township. He said they met with the owner and he did make 
some of the changes that were needed. Mr. Radzik stated that although the 
outside of the building does not look bad the inside is deteriorating. Mr. Radzik 
said that currently the vacant building is a fire hazard and cannot be occupied. 
Mr. Radzik stated the owners, who are out of Detroit, do not seem to be willing to 
cooperate with us by making the necessary updates to the building. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated this building has been an issue with the neighborhood 
watch group.  She said it could be a thriving area with the right businesses going 
into this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 6 
 
 

8. REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION OF PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH DTE 
FOR THE INSTALLATION OF TWO (2) NEW WOOD POLES, ONE (1) 58w LED 
LEOTECT FIXTURE, AND ONE 17’6” ARM TO BE LOCATED AT ONANDAGA 
AVE. AND THE SERVICE DR. IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,696.06 TO BE 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-956-000-926-050 CONTINGENT UPON 
APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked if this would be an area that could benefit from adding a 
camera since we would be putting up a light fixture it would be easy to add a 
camera. She also asked if the light would shine in a residents’ backyard and 
whether the residents were aware of this new light being installed.  
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident stated they are also happy to get cameras in 
West Willow and this intersection was one of the entrances to that area. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the residents would be notified in the area of the new 
light fixture. 
 

9. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2019 AT 
APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – CREATION OF SECURITY CAMERA SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #074 FOR THE CLIFFS CONDOS 

 
10.  BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 

 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 

1. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL TO SEEK 
SEALED BIDS FOR GENERATOR REPLACEMENT AT THE LAW 
ENFORCEMENT CENTER 

 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 7 
 

 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
Attorney Winters stated the Re-Imagine Washtenaw Corridor is moving forward 
with installation of ADA compliant sidewalks and curb ramps. He said it would go 
out for bid this summer and work would begin in the Fall of 2019. Mr. Winters 
said that Crunch Fitness would be going into the old Farmer Jacks building on 
Washtenaw. He said they would be occupying 24,000 square feet. Attorney 
Winters stated the retaining wall behind Gault Village will now be taken down and 
will be replaced using the funds that were escrowed. 
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director stated construction began a couple days ago, most of 
the wall was already down, and they are beginning the reconstruction. 
 
Attorney Winters stated the new owner of Gault Village has not been responsive. 
He said the court allowed him to purchase the property but the new owner has 
not moved forward in making the changes that need to be made. He said the 
Township would be going back to court and we would like the Judge to make an 
onsite visit to inspect this property. 
 
Attorney Winters said the Ford Blvd. Fire Station parking lot was completed.  He 
said the Civic Center would be getting a new roof this spring. 
 
Attorney Winters stated R&L Carriers were expanding their business in Ypsilanti 
Township and will be looking for additional employees. 
 
Attorney Winters stated the Township closed on the River Grove Townhomes that 
were acquired through the Washtenaw County Tax Foreclosure process.  
 
Attorney Winters stated Kettering School has been demolished and Thurston 
School should be demolished soon. He said we are still working on the funding for 
the clean up of Forbes Cleaners. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 8 
 
Attorney Winters stated they are working with ACM and will continue to stay 
involved with changing the property from WRAD to ACM and make sure Township 
interests are protected. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams thanked Attorney Winters and staff who continued to work 
on Re-Imagine Washtenaw. She said that it would change that corridor and make 
it more walkable for many residents and visitors.  

 
Work Session ended at approximately 6:39 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



 

Closed Session Minutes 

 
A. The April 16, 2019 Closed Session Minutes will be distributed 

to Board Members prior to the meeting. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
 

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent 
prayer. 
 
Members Present:  Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy Roe, 
                                         Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe                                                                          
                                          Jimmie Wilson, Jr., and Monica Ross-Williams 
 
Members Absent:  None 
                    
Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident thanked the board for supporting the 
community. She said she would like to thank Trustee Monica Ross-Williams her 
involvement with trying to help section 8 voucher recipients purchase their own 
homes.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 2, 2019 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 
MEETING. 

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 16, 2019 IN THE  

AMOUNT OF $1,010,175.25 

2. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR MARCH 2019 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $57,067.56 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR FEBRUARY 2019 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,112.50 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 

Approve the Consent Agenda. 

The motion carried unanimously. 
 

C. MARCH 2019 TREASURER’S REPORT 

 A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Jimmie Wilson to 

Approve the March 2019 Treasurer’s Report. 

The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE – given in the Work Session 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 1830 UNION WITH A TERM ENDING DATE OF 
DECEMBER 31, 2019 WITH A FORMAL BUDGET AMENDMENT BROUGHT 
BACK TO THE NEXT BOARD MEETING 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve the Contract with Ypsilanti Township Firefighters Local 1830 Union with 
a Term Ending Date of December 31, 2019 with a Formal Budget Amendment 
Brought Back to the Next Board Meeting (see attached). 

 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. REQUEST APPROVAL OF UPDATED SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY AND CELL PHONE 
POLICY TO BE INCLUDED IN THE TOWNSHIP POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL WITH THE ADDITION OF THE COMMENTS FROM THE WORK 
SESSION BEING INCLUDED 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request of Updated Social Media Policy and Cell Phone Policy to be 
Included in the Township Policy and Procedure Manual With the Addition of the 
Comments from the Work Session Being Included (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. REQUEST APPROVAL OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE WASHTENAW 
COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FOR AN 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT GRANT IN A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF 
$26,899.00 AND TO APPROVE THE WASHTENAW COUNTY BROWNFIELD 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT GRANT 
AGREEMENT 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Grant Application to the Washtenaw County Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority for an Environmental Assessment Grant in a not to Exceed Amount of 
$26,899.00 and to Approve the Washtenaw County Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority Environmental Assessment Grant Agreement (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 

4. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH TETRA TECH FOR A PHASE I 
ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT UPDATE AND HAZARDOUS BUILDING 
MATERIALS SURVEY FOR THE COMMUNITY CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$28,701.00 TO BE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 212-970-000-976-008 
CONTINGENT ON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve Agreement with Tetra Tech for a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
Update and Hazardous Building Materials Survey Proposal for the Community 
Center in the Amount of $28,701.00 to be Budgeted in Line Item 212-970-000-
976-008 Contingent on Approval of the Budget Amendment (see attached).  
  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. REQUEST APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH FRIENDS OF RUTHERFORD 
POOL IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 101-956-000-
882-004 WITH TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Wilson, supported by Treasurer Doe to Approve 
Agreement with Friends of Rutherford Pool in the Amount of $5,000.00 Budgeted 
in Line Item 101-956-000-884-004 with Term Ending September 30, 2019 (see 
attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
6. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 

LEGAL ACTION TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE DRUG HOUSES BY 
PADLOCKING LOCATED AT 6934 POPLAR IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request of Mike Radzik, OCS Director for Authorization to Seek Legal 
Action to Abate Public Nuisance Drug Houses by Padlocking Located at 6934 
Poplar in the Amount of $10,000.00 Budgeted in Line Item #101-950-000-801-
023. 

 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 

7. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 
LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1474 ECORSE RD. IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams the 
Approve Request of Mike Radzik, OCS Director for Authorization to Seek Legal 
Action if Necessary to Abate Nuisance for Property Located at 1474 Ecorse Rd. in 
the Amount of $10,000.00 Budgeted in Line Item #101-950-000-801-023 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION OF PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH DTE FOR 
THE INSTALLATION OF TWO (2) NEW WOOD POLES, ONE (1) 58w LED 
LEOTECT FIXTURE, AND ONE 17’6” ARM TO BE LOCATED AT ONANDAGA 
AVE. AND THE SERVICE DR. IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,696.06 TO BE 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-956-000-926-050 CONTINGENT UPON 
APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT AND THAT WE NOTIFY THE 
HOMEOWNER 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Authorization of Purchase Agreement with DTE for the Installation of 
Two (2) New Wood Poles, One (1) 58w LED Leotek Fixture, and One 17’6” ARM to 
be located at Onandaga Ave. and the Service Dr. in the Amount of $2,696.06 to 
be Budgeted in Line Item Budgeted in Line Item #101-956-000-926-050 
Contingent Upon Approval of the Budget Amendment and we notify the 
homeowner (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

9. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2019 AT 
APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – CREATION OF SECURITY CAMERA SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #074 FOR THE CLIFFS CONDOS 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to Set a 
Public Hearing Date of Tuesday, May 21, 2019 at Approximately 7:00PM – 
Creation of Security Camera Special Assessment District #074 for the Cliffs 
Condos. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

10.  BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to 
Approve Budget Amendment #7 (see attached).    
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 

1. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL TO SEEK SEALED 
BIDS FOR GENERATOR REPLACEMENT AT THE LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request of Mike Radzik, OCS Director for Approval to Seek Sealed Bids 
for Generator Replacement at the Law Enforcement Center. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Adjourn. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:16PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 27 - WAGES 

Management Proposal 3-20-2019 

 

Section 1 – Wage Schedule  

Each employee upon ratification will receive the following base wage change: 

 2016 2017 
3% 

2018 
2.5% 

2018 
.5% 

2019 
3% 

Firefighter     start .42 .44 .38 +.08 .46 
Firefighter    1 Year .45 .47 .40 +.08 .50 
Firefighter    2 Year .48 .50 .43 +.09 .53 
Firefighter    3 Year .51 .53 .45 +.09 .56 
Firefighter    4 Year .54 .56 .48 +.10 .59 
Firefighter    5 Year .57 .59 .51 +.10 .63 
      
Lieutenant .64 .65 .56 +.12 .69 
Captain .67 .69 .59 +.12 .73 
Fire Marshal 1.03 1.06 .91 +.19 1.13 

 

The base hourly shall be as follows: 

 2016 2017 2018 2018 
+.5% 

2019 
3% 

Firefighter   start 14.56 15.00 15.38 15.46 15.92 
Firefighter   1 Year 15.59 16.06 16.46 16.54 17.04 
Firefighter   2 Year 16.62 17.12 17.55 17.64 18.17 
Firefighter   3 Year 17.65 18.18 18.63 18.72 19.28 
Firefighter   4 Year 18.68 19.24 19.72 19.82 20.41 
Firefighter   5 Year 19.71 20.30 20.81 20.91 21.54 
      
Lieutenant 21.82 22.47 23.03 23.15 23.84 
Captain 22.98 23.67 24.26 24.38 25.11 
Fire Marshal 35.37 36.43 37.34 37.53 38.66 

 

The Ypsilanti Township Board will be seeking a millage in 2018 to fund Capital Improvements 

for the fire department. When the millage passes, Local 1830 members will receive a .5% 

retroactive wage escalator dating back to January 1st 2018.  

 

Upon ratification of 2019 extension employees will receive a 3% wage increase for the 

remainder of 2019.  Employees will also receive a lump sum 3% retro from January 1, 2019 thru 

ratification of extension.  



 

 
 

ARTICLE 27 – WAGES (con’t) 

Management Proposal 3-20-2019 

 

For purpose of clarification, new hires during the eighty hour orientation program (2 weeks /40-

hour shift) shall be paid based on an hourly wage rate equivalent to a 53-hour work week at start 

wage divided by 40 hours. (Ex: $14.56 x 53/40 = $19.29 per hour).  

 

Section 2 – Longevity Pay – for Employees hired before 1/1/2014 

Employees in addition to their base hourly rates shall receive longevity pay as follows: 

Five (5) years of service - $  .39 per hour 

Ten (10) years of service  - $  .78 per hour 

Fifteen (15) years of service - $1.16 per hour 

Twenty (20) years of service - $1.55 per hour 

 

(a) Employees shall become eligible to earn their longevity steps on the completion of each 

five- (5) years of service. 

 

(b) Employees who become eligible to receive the longevity pay shall receive such longevity 

increment on the first pay next following the anniversary date in which said employee 

becomes eligible. 

 

Longevity Pay – for Employees hired after 1/1/2014 

Longevity pay shall be paid out as a flat fee, based on years of service and not rolled into base 

wage.  Longevity will be payable with December bills each year.  First time payments at each 

step will be prorated from the anniversary date. 

 

Five (5) years of service - $500.00 annually 

Ten (10) years of service  - $1,000.00 annually 

Fifteen (15) years of service - $1,500.00 annually 

Twenty (20) years of service - $2,000.00 annually 

Twenty-five (25) years of service - $2,500.00 annually 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 27 – WAGES (con’t) 

Management Proposal 3-20-2019 

 

Section 3 - Training Increments for employees hired before 1/1/14 

Employees who achieve and maintain the following levels of training, licensure or certification 

shall receive in addition to their base hourly rate the following pay: 

EMT  . 44 per hour 

Associate Degree or Bachelor Degree in Fire Prevention, Fire Administration, or  

Public Safety Administration  .34 per hour 

 

Section 4  

Any employee required to work in a capacity above their normal rank shall be compensated 

accordingly. 

 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 39 – INSURANCE 

Management Proposal 3-20-2019 

 

Section 1 

The Township shall obtain and pay the full cost of providing term life insurance in the 

amount of $35,000 death benefit for all employees who have completed ninety-days of 

employment.  This insurance shall include coverage for accidental death and 

dismemberment.  

 

Section 2 

Effective January 1, 2018, and in conjunction with the “Letter of Agreement” the 

employee health care insurance coverage will be the following: 

 

 Blue Cross/Blue Shield Flex Blue Plan #3 Medical Coverage with the Flexible Blue RX 

Prescription Drug Rider. The Township will provide a benefits card to pay for In-Network 

deductibles of up to $3,250/per person and up to $6,450/per family.  In addition, the 

Township will provide an additional $1,000/per person and $2,000/family of $10 

generic/$60 Brand name coinsurance for prescription drugs.  The benefit card will be paid 

for by the Township through a Healthcare Reimbursement Account established by the 

Township. 

 

 As of January 1, 2018, employees receiving health care insurance will contribute $75.00/per pay period toward 

their health care premium, unless otherwise specified within the relevant bargaining agreement or employment 

contract.  Employees receiving health care insurance will contribute on the first two pays 

of each month toward their health care premium.  The 2019 extension contributions 

will be as follows:  Single Coverage = $25.00/per pay; Two Person Coverage = 

$50.00/per pay; Family Coverage = $75.00/per pay 

 

 Vision insurance at level currently provided through VSP Vision Plan with premium paid by 

the Township. 

 Dental Coverage at level currently provided through Delta Dental with premium paid by the 

Township. 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 39 – INSURANCE (con’t) 

Management Proposal 3-20-2019 

 
It is understood and agreed that the parties will review on an annual basis the coverage’s 

provided revising levels if necessary to minimize the cost increase to the employees and the 

employer and to insure that the health care plan complies with the then current 

requirements of state law. 

 
Employees hired after 1/1/2014 
Employees hired after January 1, 2014 will be offered individual health care coverage paying the then 

current employee contribution ($75.00 per pay as of 1/1/18).  In addition, if the employee elects coverage 

for dependents they will be required to pay 20% of the difference between the single rate premium and 

elected dependent premium. 

 
Employees will contribute $50.00 per pay with a matching $100.00 contribution from the 

Township Fire Fund to be applied to a Health Care Savings Program in the employee’s name for 

future health care cost as retiree health care will not be provided.  *See Article 42, Section 5 for 

additional information.  

 
Section 3 

The Township shall provide the option for each bargaining unit employee to withdraw 

from the health insurance coverage provided by the Township if they are covered under 

the health insurance of their spouse, significant other, or another employer.  These 

employees who chose to withdraw shall receive annually a $3,000.00 payment in lieu of 

health insurance.  This payment shall be made in two installments: one in March June 

and one in October December (Note: The first installment for 2019 will be in March). 

To participate in this plan, the employee must notify the Employer prior to March 1 of 

each year and provide verification of the alternative coverage.  

If the employee has a "life event" as defined in section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, 

they shall notify the Township Human Resources Department immediately and will be 

returned to the Township coverage as soon as the Insurance Carrier and the Federal and 

State Tax Laws allow. The employee shall refund to the Township a pro rata amount of 

their payment based on when the employee is returned to the regular coverage.  If for any 

reason their plan shall jeopardize the tax-exempt status of the health benefits for other  



 

 
 

ARTICLE 39 - INSURANCE (con’t) 

Management Proposal 3-20-2019 

 

employees, the Union and Management shall meet to negotiate changes in this agreement 

to conform to the tax law so that the health insurance benefits for other employees remain 

tax exempt. 

 

Section 4 

There shall be no double coverage of employees.  If the spouse of an employee covered 

by this collective bargaining agreement is also a Township employee, they must choose 

which coverage to be under, as they will not receive both.  They will receive the 

$3,000.00 annual payment in lieu of the second health care coverage, once they are 

outside of the second coverage. 

 

Section 5 

An employee who has a disabled person(s) other than their spouse or eligible dependent 

children who are either related to the employee by blood or marriage and who live in the 

home of the employee and qualify as a dependent for purposes of the employee’s federal 

income tax, shall have made available to them a rider for “Sponsored Dependent” health 

care coverage as provided by the employees’ selected health insurance carrier.  This 

coverage shall be provided at the expense of the employee with payment due by the fifth 

of the month prior to the month of coverage. 

 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 42 – RETIREMENT 

MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL 3-20-2019 
 

Section 1 

All employees of the Ypsilanti Township Fire Department shall be covered under Act 

345 of the Public Acts of 1937, as amended. 

 

Section 2 

All employees of the Ypsilanti Township Fire Department may retire upon written notice 

to the Human Resources Department and copied to the Retirement Board, after 

completing twenty-five (25) years of credited service with the Ypsilanti Township Fire 

Department, as described in Act 345 of the Public Acts of 1937, as amended.  The figure 

of 3% shall be used to compute the retirement benefits of the retiree hired before January 

1, 2014.  Employees hired after January 1, 2014 the figure of 2.35% shall be used to 

compute the retirement benefits of the retiree.  Employees shall be entitled to the Military 

Service Credit as provided in Act 345.  Final Average Compensation shall be calculated 

on the three- (3) years of highest annual compensation received by an employee during 

the ten- (10) years of service immediately proceeding retirement.  

 

Section 3 

All employees shall contribute ten (10) percent of gross earnings to retirement.  Six (6) 

percent of the employee contribution shall be directed to the Retirement Fund and Four 

(4) percent of the employee contribution shall be directed to the Firefighters Public 

Employee Health Care Fund.   To the extent that the current annual actuarial valuation of 

the Retirement Fund indicates that the employee contributions to the Retirement Fund are 

not required to fund all pension benefits provided under Act 345 and this Agreement, the 

employee contributions required under this Section 3 will be paid to the Public Employee 

Health Care Fund established by the Township under Act 149 of the Public Acts of 1999 

to fund retired firefighters’ health care benefits.  The above stated provision shall be in 

effect for the duration of this collective bargaining agreement.  

 



 

 
 

 

ARTICLE 42 – RETIREMENT (con’t) 

MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL 3-20-2019 

 

Section 4 

For all employees who retire after January 1, 1989, the Township shall provide life 

insurance in the amount of $35,000.00 without accidental death and dismemberment until 

the employee reaches age 65.  At age 65, the life insurance benefit shall be reduced to a 

$5,000.00 death benefit only. 

 

Section 5 

Employees, who retire after January 1, 1989 shall continue to receive the health care 

coverage listed in this Agreement. The Township shall pay for this coverage if not 

provided by the Retirement Fund. At age 65, the Township shall provide these employees 

only with a Medicare tie-in benefit instead of the health care coverage in Article 39.  The 

Township shall provide health care coverage per Article 39 for the employee's spouse and 

dependents at the time of retirement until the death of the employee.  Upon death of an 

employee who retires January 1, 2005 or thereafter, the Township shall continue to 

provide health care coverage for the surviving spouse and eligible dependent children 

until 19-years of age, provided the surviving spouse is eligible for pension survivor 

benefits.    If the employee's spouse reaches age 65, the Township shall provide the 

spouse with the above Medicare tie-in benefit. 

 

The full cost of the health care benefits for retired employees shall be paid from a Public 

Employee Health Care Fund established by the Township under Act 149 of the Public 

Acts of 1999.  For purposes of Act 345, the Act 149 Public Employee Health Care Fund 

is treated as part of the Retirement Fund.  These health care benefits shall be considered 

included in the “pensions and benefits payable” from the Retirement Fund for purposes 

of Act 345.  The Act 149 Public Employee Health Care Fund will be funded in the same 

manner as the pension benefits are currently funded, from appropriations by the 

Township and employee contributions authorized by Act 345. 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 42 – RETIREMENT (con’t) 

Management Proposal 3-20-2019 

 

Employees hired after January 1, 2014 will not be eligible for retiree health care. 

Employees will contribute $50.00 per pay with a matching $100.00 contribution from the 

Township Fire Fund to be applied to a Health Care Savings Program in the employee’s 

name for future health care cost with a 10-year vesting for purposes of retirement, on the 

employer contribution. (Please note – for employees hired after 1/1/14 this replaces the employee 

contribution currently being directed into the Firefighters Public Employee Health Care Fund) 

 

Section 6 – For employees hired before 1/1/2014 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan: Upon attainment of regular service retirement 

eligibility of twenty-five (25) years of credited services, a member may elect to freeze 

their retirement benefit in the traditional defined benefit plan and enter into the Deferred 

Retirement Option Plan (DROP). The Deferred Retirement Option Plan adopted by the 

Ypsilanti Township Police & Firefighters’ Retirement Board shall be a forward drop 

program limited to five (5) years and be designed to be cost neutral to the retirement 

fund.  

 

(a) Election to Participate: A member’s election to participate in the DROP is 

irrevocable and they are not allowed to re-enter the retirement system as an active 

member.  A DROP participant is not eligible for any additional retirement 

benefits (i.e., service credit, increases in FAC, etc.) or negotiated pension 

improvements.  The DROP member will be eligible for all other negotiated 

contractual improvements outside of the pension system.  

 

(b) Contributions: Upon entry into the DROP, Employee contributions to the 

retirement system cease.  Employees entering the DROP will continue to 

contribute toward the employee health care fund at the rate of the Non-DROP 

active employees (4% as of January 1, 2014). 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 42 – RETIREMENT (con’t) 

MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL 3-20-2019 

 

(c) Employee Status: Participants in the DROP shall continue to work and shall be 

eligible for all contractual provisions afforded active employees including, but not 

limited to: wages, benefits, holiday pay, vacation leave, and sick leave.  

 

(d) Final Average Compensation: Upon entry into the DROP, the participant’s 

Final Average Compensation shall be calculated and frozen. Members shall have 

the option of having up to fourteen (14) unused vacation days paid out to them. 

The unused vacation days can be banked over the fire fighters career. The 

vacation pay out shall be included in the calculation of the Final Average 

Compensation (FAC).  The paid out vacation days shall be forfeited for use 

during the year for which they were awarded. 

 

(e) Termination of Employment: Drop participants shall be eligible for any 

terminal leave payments of vacation leave, sick leave and compensatory time paid 

out at their current wage rate.  

 
Section 7 

The DROP Program will not be available for any Fire Department employee hired after 

January 1, 2014. 

 
Section 8 

Medical Disability Retirement as described in act 345 of public act of 1937, as amended 

shall read: 

Upon application a member  with 5 or more years of service and who becomes totally and 

permanently incapacitated for duty by reason of a personal injury or illness occurring as a 

result of causes outside the course of the member’s employment by the municipality may 

be retired by the retirement board. The member shall receive a disability retirement  

 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 42 – RETIREMENT (con’t) 

MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL 3-20-2019 

 

pension of 1.5% of the member’s average final compensation multiplied by the number 

of years of service credited to the member.   Effective January 1, 2016 once a member 

reaches 60 days prior to the anniversary of what would have been their 25th year of 

service they should notify, in writing, the Human Resource Department. At that time, the 

pension will be recalculated based on the multiplier rate that was in effect at the time the 

said member was deemed medically retired.  It may take up to 60 days from the time of 

the notification for the recalculated change to be enacted. 

NOTE: For additional information regarding retirement see Article 35. 

 



 

 

Social Media Policy 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti understands that social media can be a fun and rewarding 
way for employees and/or elected officials to share their lives and opinions with family, friends 
and co-workers. Use of social media can also present certain risks and carry with it certain 
responsibilities. Employees and/or elected officials should adhere to the following guidelines in 
regards to social media:  

Guidelines 

Social media includes all means of communicating or posting information or content of any sort 
on the internet, including to one’s own or someone else’s web log or blog, journal or diary, 
personal website, social networking or affinity website, web bulletin board or chat room, as 
well as any other form of electronic communication. Each person is solely responsible for what 
he/she posts online.  

I. Using Social Media During Work Hours 

Personal use of social media during work hours (outside of lunch) is not permitted unless it is 
work related and authorized by a supervisor or department head. Employees and/or elected 
officials are not authorized to use Charter Township of Ypsilanti email addresses to register on 
social networks, blogs or other online tools utilized for personal use.   

II. Using Social Media Outside of Work Hours 

Employees and/or elected officials are required to maintain the confidentiality of the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti and not post private or confidential information. No financial, sensitive or 
proprietary information about the Township Board, employees, residents, vendors or 
applicants is to be posted on any social media sites. 

Any on-line conduct that adversely affects an employee, Township Board member, Township 
residents or the Township’s business interests may result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment.  

Although employees are not to represent themselves as a spokesperson for the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti. Township news that is deemed to be public information may be shared 
on personal pages.  

 

Drafted: March 4, 2019 



 

 

Cell Phone Usage Policy 

 

The following is the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s policy regarding the use of electronic 
devices and applies to all employees and/or elected officials. Under this policy, the term 
“electronic device” is defined as any device that makes or receives phone calls, leaves 
messages, sends text messages, surfs the internet or downloads and allows for the reading of 
and responding to email.   The Charter Township of Ypsilanti reserves the right to modify or 
update this policy at any time. 

Township Issued Electronic Devices 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti may issue employees and/or elected officials an electronic 
device based on their position and scope of responsibilities, as well as the communication 
needs of the Township necessary to promote safe, productive and efficient operations of 
Township business. Each employee and/or elected official issued an electronic device is 
responsible for the condition, care and use of the device, which is primarily to be used for 
Township business. Occasional personal use is permitted as long as it does not interfere with 
daily business operations. Privacy will be governed by law. 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti has the right, at any time, to monitor and preserve 
communications that utilize the Township’s networks in any way, including data, voicemail, 
telephone logs, internet use, network traffic, etc. to determine proper utilization and reserves 
the right to review and retain such records at its discretion to investigate any irregularities or 
violations of policy. Upon review, employees and/or elected officials may be requested to 
reimburse the Township for excessive irregularities. Employees and/or elected officials may use 
their Township issued electronic device(s) outside of their normal work schedule to receive and 
address work-related emergency calls. Use of other electronic device features outside of 
normal work hours requires advance authorization from the department director. 

Personal Electronic Devices 

Although discouraged, it’s understood that personal use of electronic devices is sometimes 
necessary. Personal electronic devices should be silenced or set to vibrate mode during working 
hours so as not to disrupt the normal workflow. This includes but is not limited to: social media 
activity, personal phone calls and texting.  

Should time-consuming personal business need to be conducted during business hours, the 
employee must receive prior approval from their direct supervisor.  

If personal device use causes repeated disruptions or a loss in productivity, the employee may 
become subject to disciplinary action.  

In the event that abuse of the personal device policy become evident, this policy may be 
updated to further restrict use of personal devices during work hours. 



 

 

 

Cell Phone Usage While Driving 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti is committed to ensuring the safety of employees and/or 
elected officials, as well as complying with all applicable laws. 
If you must make or receive a call or use an electronic device while driving, a blue-tooth or 
hands-free device must be utilized. Where hands-free technology is not available, employees 
and/or elected officials are required to pull off to the side of the road and safely stop the 
vehicle.  
 
Employees and/or elected officials who are charged with traffic violations resulting from the use 
of their phone while driving will be solely responsible for all liabilities that result from such 
actions. 

 

Draft:  March 4, 2019 



1 

WASHTENAW COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT GRANT AGREEMENT 

This Environmental Assessment Grant Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated May 3, 2019 is entered 
between the WASHTENAW COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (the “Authority”), an 
authority established pursuant to Act 381 of 1996, as amended (“Act 381”), whose address is 220 N. 
Main Street, P.O. Box 8645, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48107-8645 and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, (the 
“Grantee”), whose address is 7200 Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197. 

RECITALS 

A. Pursuant to Act 381, as amended, the Authority captures Brownfield Administrative Fees from 
Tax Increment Revenues from active brownfield projects for the purpose of carrying out 
brownfield redevelopment activities, including to pay for reasonable and actual administrative 
and operating expenses of the Authority.

B. The Authority established the “Environmental Assessment Grant Program” in 2017, and 
amended it on August 2, 2018 and April 4, 2019, in order to fund eligible Department Specific 
Activities, pursuant to Act 381, on prospective eligible brownfield sites within member 
communities.

C. The Authority intends to utilize reserves within its Administrative Fees to fund the 
Environmental Assessment Grant Program.

D. At the May 2, 2019 meeting, the Authority approved the expenditure of 100% of the costs to 
conduct eligible Department Specific Activities, up to $26,899, for the property known as 2025
E. Clark Road, Ypsilanti Township Community Center, Tax ID# K-11-02-100-006, Ypsilanti, MI 
48197 (the “Property”).

E. The Grantee wishes to utilize grant funds to conduct eligible Department Specific Activities, and 
the Authority will provide the grant fund under the Terms and Conditions herein contained. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Pursuant to the Recitals of this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Grant – The Authority hereby agrees to grant to the Grantee 100% of the costs, up to $26,899, to
conduct Department Specific Activities within the Property.  The work to be conducted will be in
accordance with the TetraTech proposal No. ___________ dated _____________, 2019, sent to Sara
Jo Shipley.  Any costs above the approved amounts will not be reimbursed.



2 

2. Repayment – The provided grant funds shall not be required to be repaid to the Authority, provided 
the Grantee complies with all applicable Terms and Conditions.

3. Procurement of Eligible Activities – The Authority is bound to utilize Administrative fees captured in 
accordance with Act 381.  Further, in establishing the Environmental Assessment program the 
Authority must be good stewards of the funds in ensuring they are utilized in the most cost-effective 
and efficient manner.  Therefore, pursuant to the adopted Assessment Program Policy, the Grantee 
shall follow its own established procurement policies and procedures in arranging for the grant 
activities to be completed.

4. Authority to Conduct Work on Behalf of Grantee – At the request of the Grantee, the Authority may 
conduct the grant-funded assessment work on behalf of the Grantee.  The Authority will follow 
applicable Washtenaw County procurement procedures to contract with qualified environmental 
consultants to complete the work.  This may include a singular request for quotes for the work to be 
conducted.  Or, procurement may entail a periodic public release of Request for Qualifications to 
pre-approve, in advance of any specific work needed, qualified environmental consultants, retaining 
those contractors on an on-going basis in order to expedite the necessary work to be completed.

5. Extension of Reliance of Environmental Reports to Authority and Assignees – Any and all reports, 
investigations, testing, and information generated wholly or partially utilizing funding through this 
grant program shall include the ability of the Washtenaw County Brownfield Authority and its 
assignees and/or designees, as determined by the Authority, to rely upon such reports, 
investigations, testing and information.  Further, copies of any and all reports shall be provided to 
the Authority once completed, prior to any disbursement of grant funds.

6. Disbursement – The Grant funds will be disbursed to the Grantee as approved Department Specific 
Activities are or have been completed, upon submittal by Grantee of a statement of costs of such 
activities paid or incurred from time to time, and receipt of reports, investigations, testing and 
information in accordance with Section 5 above, but not more frequently than monthly.  Such a 
statement shall include a description of eligible work performed, and a copy of invoices for the work 
described in such statement.  Within forty (40) days of a receipt of a complete statement and 
supporting invoices, brownfield staff shall review the statement, confirm that the work done is 
eligible, and disburse to Grantee the amount set forth in the statement, up to a cumulative 
disbursement not to exceed the amount approved by the Authority, which is 100% of all eligible 
costs, up to $26,899.

7. Unspent Grant Funds – If the final cost of the eligible activities conducted is below the maximum 
award, remaining unspent grant funds will not be reimbursed, but rather revert back to fund 
reserves for use on other suspected brownfield sites.

8. Compliance with Applicable Environmental Regulations – It shall be the responsibility of the Grantee 
to comply with all applicable local, state and federal environmental regulations, as it applies to any 
and all Eligible Activities funded by the Grant. 



3 

9. Grant Expiration – All Eligible Activities shall be completed within one year of this Agreement, unless
the Authority grants an extension.

10. Insurance – The Grantee shall purchase and maintain insurance coverages as indicated at limits not
less than those set forth below.   Grantee shall name Washtenaw County and Washtenaw County
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority as an additional insureds under all coverages listed below
except Worker’s Compensation. The Grantee shall maintain other insurance as it deems appropriate
for its own protection.

a. Worker’s Disability Compensation and Occupational Disease Insurance including Employers
Liability Coverage in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan.

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance on an “Occurrence Basis” with limits of liability not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate combined single limit.
Coverage shall include the following:

i. Contractual Liability

ii. Products and Completed Operations

iii. Independent Contractors Coverage

iv. Broad Form General Liability Endorsement or Equivalent

c. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault Coverage, with limits of
liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property Damage.
Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles and all hired vehicles.

The Grantee shall also require each and every contractor(s) and/or subcontractor(s) engaged by the 
Grantee to perform services pursuant to this Agreement to purchase and maintain insurance 
coverages at the limits set forth below.  Grantee’s contractor(s) and/or subcontractor(s) shall name 
Washtenaw County and Washtenaw County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority as additional 
insureds under all coverages listed below except Worker’s Compensation, Motor Vehicle Liability, 
and Professional Liability. 

a. Worker’s Disability Compensation and Occupational Disease Insurance including Employers
Liability Coverage in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan.

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance on an “Occurrence Basis” with limits of liability not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate combined single limit.
Coverage shall include the following:

i. Contractual Liability

ii. Products and Completed Operations



4 

iii. Independent Contractors Coverage

iv. Broad Form General Liability Endorsement or Equivalent

c. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault Coverage, with limits of
liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property Damage.
Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles and all hired vehicles.

d. Professional Liability coverage with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each occurrence.

All insurance coverages described above shall remain in effect at all times until completion of all 
Eligible Activities. The Grantee shall deliver copies of certificates of insurance for each of the policies 
mentioned above to the Authority.  If so requested, certified copies of all policies will be provided.  
It is understood and agreed that thirty (30) days advanced written notice of cancellation, non-
renewal, reduction and/or material change in any coverage shall be sent to the Authority. 

11. Indemnification – To the extent permitted by Michigan law, the Grantee shall ensure its contractor
shall indemnify and hold Washtenaw County and the Washtenaw County Brownfield Authority
harmless from and against all actions, liabilities, demands, costs and expenses, including court costs
and attorney fees, which may arise due to the Grantee’s negligent, grossly negligent and/or
intentional acts or omissions under this Agreement.

12. Freedom of Information Act – Grantee understands that all communications, information, and/or
documentation submitted by Grantee may be open to the public under the Freedom of Information
Act, Act No. 442 of the Public Acts of 1976, being Sections 15.23 to 15.24 of the Michigan Compiled
Laws and no claim of trade secrets or any other privilege or exception to the Freedom of
Information Act will be claimed by Petitioners as it relates to this Agreement.

13. Notices – All notices shall be given by registered or certified mail addressed to the parties at their
respective addresses as shown above.  Either party may change the address by written notice sent
by registered or certified mail to the other party.

14. Assignment – The interest of any party under this Agreement shall not be assignable without the
other parties’ written consent.

15. Entire Agreement – This Agreement supersedes all agreements previously made between the
parties relating to the subject matter.  There are no other understandings or agreements between
them.

16. Non-Waiver – No delay or failure by either party to exercise any right under this Agreement, and no
partial or single exercise of that right, shall constitute a waiver of that or any other right, unless
otherwise expressly provided herein.

17. Headings – Headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be used to interpret
or construe its provisions.



5 

18. Governing Law – This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of
the State of Michigan.

19. Compliance with Applicable Law – Grantee agrees to comply all applicable federal, state, and local
laws, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, and other legal obligations of a similar effect.

20. Counterparts – This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

21. No Third Party Beneficiaries – This Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to create any rights
to reimbursement or otherwise in the Consultant, Contractors, Subcontractors, or any third parties.
This Agreement shall not be construed to create any third party beneficiary contract or claim, and
the parties intend there to be no third party beneficiaries.

22. Binding Effect – The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
each of the parties and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns.

The parties have executed this Agreement on the dates set forth below. 

WASHTENAW COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

BY:____________________________________ 

  Jeremy McCallion, WCBRA Chair 

Date:__________________________________ 

Attested to: 

By:____________________________________ 

    Lawrence Kestenbaum, County Clerk/Register 

Date:__________________________________ 

Approved As to Form: Approve As to Form: 

By:____________________________________ By:____________________________________ 

     Curtis Hedger, Corporation Counsel 



6 

_________________, Grantee 

BY:____________________________________ 

 PRINT NAME:___________________________ 

ITS:____________________________________ 

Date:__________________________________ 

Exhibits 

Exhibit A – Proposal to Provide Environmental Consulting Services by TetraTech, dated 
_________________, 2019



7 

EXHIBIT A 





































e

e
e

e

e

A

C
A

A A

A

A
A

A

A

A

C

A

A C

C

A

A

A
C

C

A

A

j

U

U

U

d

d

d
d

d

d

d

d

d

d

d
d

d

d
1-4,AL-C

BL

2-2,AL-C
BL

2-2,AL-C
BL

1-4,AL-C
BL

3-2,W
P

3-1/0,A

1-4,MXAT

3-
1/

0,
B

2-4,MXAT
1-4,MXAT-N

2-8,A4

1-4,MXAT
1-8,A4

1-4,MXAT

1-4,M
XAT

3-2,WP

3-1/0,B
US 12  
US 12  

N
ASH

 ST 
N

ASH
 ST 

ONANDAGO ST 

ONANDAGO ST 

I-9
4 

SE
RV

IC
E 

DR
IV

E 
 

I-9
4 

SE
RV

IC
E 

DR
IV

E 
 

DESO
TO

 ST 

DESO
TO

 ST EC
ORSE

 R
D 

EC
ORSE

 R
D 

STATE HWY 17 SERVICE DR 

STATE HWY 17 SERVICE DR 

P59
50

60
 - 6

9 W
 LED

V34
02

60
 - 6

9 W
 LED

P59
90

60
 - 6

9 W
 LED

P5989
60 - 69 W LED

P59
49

60
 - 6

9 W
 LEDN12

01

13
0 -

 13
9 W

 LED

2-
2,

AL
-C

BL
1-

4,
AL

-C
BL

AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL DR 

AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL DR 

P59
51

60
 - 6

9 W
 LED

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,

u27495
Oval

u27495
Line

u27495
Oval

u27495
Callout
Install wood pole

u27495
Line

u27495
Line

u27495
Callout
Install new pole, 58w LED, code 48 arm.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2019 BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 REVISED 4/16/19

April 16, 2019 

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $5,507.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $2,810.00

Net Revenues $2,810.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-201-000-708.004 $2,610.00

FICA 101-201-000-715.000 $200.00
Net Expenditures $2,810.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $2,697.00

Net Revenues $2,697.00

Expenditures: Streetlight - Construction 101-956-000-926.050 $2,697.00

Net Expenditures $2,697.00

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $28,701.00

*

Revenues: County Grant 212-000-000-540.000 $15,000.00
212-000-000-699.000 $13,701.00

Net Revenues $28,701.00

Expenditures: Community Center - Improvement 212-970-000-976.008 $28,701.00

Net Expenditures $28,701.00

* Revision #2 - amount requested by Clerk 4/16/19

Request to increase budget for PTO payouts at 75% of the hours requested.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for the purchase and installation of streetlight near Onandaga Avenue and the Service 
Drive intersection. This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase the budget $28,688 for the  professional services of Tetra Tech to perform Environmental 
Phase I Testing  to complete lead test, radon test, and asbestos test at the Community Center.  This testing is 
required in order to receive future HUD CDBG grant funds for flooring replacement.  An amount of $15,000 will be 
funded by reimbursement from an  Environmental Assessment Grant provided by  the Washtenaw County 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and $13,701  will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2019 Budget (#7) – REVISED 4/16/19 
 
 

 
Move to increase the General Fund budget by $5,507 to $9,733,789 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 

Move to increase the Bike, Sidewalk, Rec, Roads, General Fund II budget by $28,701 to 
$1,664,113 and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 
 

 
 
 
 
 











 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

 



1 

 

RESOLUTION 2019-20 
(In Reference to Ordinance 2019-484) 

 
Prohibition 

Of Recreational Marihuana Establishments  
 
  

 Whereas, in November of 2018, Michigan voters approved the legalization 

of recreational marihuana hereinafter referred to as the 2018 Michigan 

Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act; and 

 Whereas, prior to the approval of the 2018 Michigan Regulation and 

Taxation of Marihuana Act Michigan voters and the Michigan legislature 

approved two (2) separate and independent statutes which govern medical 

marihuana only, to-wit:  the Michigan Medical  Marihuana Act, Initiated Law 1 

of 2008 legalizing  medical marihuana and the Michigan  Medical Marihuana 

Facilities Licensing Act of 2016; and  

 Whereas, proposed Township Ordinance 2019-484 entitled Prohibition 

of Recreational Marihuana Establishments applies only to  commercial 

recreational marihuana businesses authorized by the 2018 Michigan 

Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act; and 

 Whereas, proposed Township Ordinance 2019-484 does not affect 

medical marihuana patients’ rights or medical marihuana caregivers’ rights under 

the 2008 Medical Marihuana Ballot Initiative, including an individual medical 

marihuana patient’s right to grow up to twelve (12) marihuana plants for personal 

use or a medical marihuana caregivers right to grow up to seventy-two (72) 

plants for their patients and themselves, and; 

 Whereas, the focal point of proposed Township  Ordinance 2019-484 

concerns potential recreational marihuana businesses that could be located 

within the boundaries of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti ; and 

 Whereas, under the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marihuana Act, a recreational marihuana business includes a number of 

different types of commercial enterprises which are as follows:  



2 

 

(1) Recreational marihuana growers and sellers of up  

     to 2,000 marihuana plants;  

(2) Recreational marihuana safety compliance   

      facilities (defined as testing facilities for potency   

      and presence of contaminants);  

     (3) Recreational marihuana processors (preparation of 

marihuana plants by compounding, blending, extracting, 

and infusing marihuana);  

     (4) Recreational marihuana microbusinesses (cultivates, 

processes, and packages up to 150 marihuana plants); 

and  

                          (5) Recreational marihuana retailer (retail sale of  

                                marihuana)  

               (6) Recreational marihuana transporters (transports  

           marihuana to and from other marihuana 

           establishments); and 

Whereas, under the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marihuana Act the Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 

(LARA) is responsible for adopting rules and regulations applicable to 

commercial recreational marihuana businesses; and 

Whereas, LARA’s initial meeting regarding the drafting of rules and 

regulations to govern recreational marihuana businesses pursuant to the 2018 

Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act was scheduled to 

convene during the week of March 25, 2019; and 

Whereas, under Governor Gretchen Whitmer’s recent executive order, a 

new State agency is expected to oversee the licensing of recreational marihuana 

businesses pursuant to the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marihuana Act once the governing the rules and regulations have been properly 

promulgated and approved as required by the Act; and 

Whereas, Municipalities have the right, under the 2018 Michigan 

Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act, to decide whether commercial 



3 

 

recreational marihuana businesses are permitted within their communities and if 

they are permitted, the type or types of businesses so allowed, the zoning 

districts in which said businesses would be permitted as well as the enactment of 

other local regulations and requirements that would be deemed to be in the best 

interests of the community; and 

Whereas, before the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees can consider 

the salient issues of whether commercial recreational marihuana businesses are 

in the best interests of the Township, and if so, the types of businesses that may 

be suited to the Township based upon the zoning district(s) for such businesses 

and whether other local regulations and requirements should be adopted, the 

Township Board needs to be fully apprised prior thereto of all of the rules and 

regulations that will be promulgated and adopted by LARA governing commercial 

recreational marihuana businesses pursuant to the 2018 Michigan Regulation 

and Taxation of Marihuana Act,; and 

Whereas, pursuant to the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marihuana Act, if the Township does not adopt an Ordinance prohibiting 

commercial recreational marihuana businesses, any commercial recreational 

marihuana business licensed by the State, is automatically allowed to operate 

within Ypsilanti Township; and 

Whereas, in order to avoid a situation where a commercial recreational 

marihuana business is licensed by the State to operate within the Township, 

before the Township Board has carefully considered whether to allow the 

businesses to operate within the Township, the Township Board hereby 

determines that it is in the best interest of the Township to maintain the status 

quo until the State of Michigan by and through LARA adopts the required rules 

and regulations applicable to commercial recreational marihuana businesses so 

as to allow the Township Board an opportunity to carefully review the same;  

  Now Therefore, 

 Be it resolved, that Ordinance No. 2019- 484 prohibiting recreational 

marihuana establishments (businesses) within Ypsilanti Township as set forth in 



4 

 

the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act is hereby 

adopted by reference. 

 

 

 

 



 

1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-484 
 
 

Prohibition of Recreational Marihuana  
Establishments Ordinance  

 
 An ordinance to provide a title for the ordinance; to define words; to 

prohibit marihuana establishments within the boundaries of the Charter Township 

of Ypsilanti pursuant to Initiated Law 1 of 2018, MCL 333.27951 et seq as may 

be amended; to provide penalties for violation of this ordinance; to provide for 

severability; to repeal all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith; 

and to provide an effective date. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  
ORDAINS: 

 
Section I 

Title 
 
 This ordinance shall be known as and be cited as the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti Prohibition of Marihuana Establishments Ordinance.  

Section II 
Definitions 

 
Words used herein shall have the definitions as provided for in Initiated 

Law 1 of 2018, MCL 333.27951 et seq, as may be amended.  

Section III 
No Marihuana Establishments 

 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby prohibits all marihuana 

establishments within the boundaries of the Township pursuant to Initiated Law 

1 of 2018, MCL 333.27951 et seq as may be amended. 



 

2 
 

Section IV 
Violations and Penalties 

 
1.  Any person who disobeys, neglects or refuses to comply with any 

provision of this ordinance or who causes, allows or consents to any of 

the same shall be deemed to be responsible for the violation of this 

ordinance.  A violation of this ordinance is deemed to be a nuisance  

per se.  

2.  A violation of this ordinance is a municipal civil infraction, for which the 

fines shall not be less than One Hundred and No/100 ($100.00) Dollars 

nor more than Five Hundred and No/100 ($500.00) Dollars, in the 

discretion of the Court.  The foregoing sanctions shall be in addition to 

the rights of the Township to proceed at law or equity with other 

appropriate and proper remedies.  Additionally, the violator shall pay 

costs which may include all expenses, direct and indirect, which the 

Township incurs in connection with the municipal civil infraction. 

3.  Each day during which any violation continues shall be deemed a  

separate offense.   

4. In addition, the Township may seek injunctive relief against persons 

alleged to be in violation of this ordinance, and such other relief as may 

be provided by law.  

5. This ordinance shall be administered and enforced by the Ordinance   

Enforcement Officer of the Township or such other person(s) as 

designated by the Township Board from time to time. 

Section V 
Severability 

 
The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be severable.  If 

any clause, sentence, word, section or provision is hereafter declared void or 

unenforceable for any reason by a Court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not 

affect the remainder of such ordinance which shall continue in full force and 

effect. 



 

3 
 

Section VI 
Repeal  
 

All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

Section VII 
Effective Date  

 
This ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a newspaper of 

general circulation as required by law. This ordinance shall cease effect on June 

30, 2020. 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 









 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION 2019-06 

(In Reference to Ordinance 2019-486) 
 

AMENDING ARTICLE XXVII OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO ADD THE 
CONDITIONAL REZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
 
Whereas, Section 3405 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, PA 110 of 2006, as 
amended, authorizes a property owner, or their authorized representative, to 
voluntarily offer conditions to the rezoning of their property as a means to provide 
a voluntary mechanism for an applicant to self-limit their request; and 
 
Whereas, the Township Planning Consultants recommended updates to the 
zoning ordinance to specify the process and circumstances for conditional 
rezonings under the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act; and 
 
Whereas, the Township Planning Consultants have recommended amendments 
to the Charter Township of Ypsilanti's (Township) Planning Commission 
(Commission) to the Township's Zoning Code; and  
 
Whereas, at its regularly scheduled meeting held April 9, 2019, the Commission 
recommended approval of the Planning Consultant's proposed amendments to the 
Township's Zoning Code to the Township Board to update Article XXVII – Changes 
and Amendments to specify the process and circumstances for conditional 
rezonings,  
 
Whereas, proposed Ordinance No. 2019-486 has revised the current existing 
Ordinance in such a fashion as to incorporate the above changes recommended; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees (Board) agrees with 
the request of the Planning Commission; 
 
Now Therefore, Be it resolved, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of 
Trustees does hereby approve Ordinance No. 2019-486 as attached, by amending 
Article XXVII of the Township's Zoning Code as noted, replacing it with proposed 
Ordinance No. 2019-486, which ordinance reflects the suggestions and input of 
the Township's Planning Consultant as recommended by the Commission. 
 
 



 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-486 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE XXVII OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO 

ADD THE CONDITIONAL REZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that the Ypsilanti Township Zoning 
Code, adopted May 18, 1994, shall be amended as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXVII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XXVII, “Changes and Amendments” by amending 
Section 2701 “Initiation of amendments”, and adding Section 2705 “Conditional 
amendment of the official zoning map”, as follows: 

Sec. 2701. - Sec. 2701. - Initiation of amendments:  

The township board may from time to time, on recommendation from the planning commission, 
amend, supplement or change the district boundaries or the regulations herein, or subsequently 
established herein. Amendments to the provisions of this ordinance (i.e. ordinance text 
amendment) may be initiated by the township board, the planning commission or by petition 
from one or more residents or property owners of the township. An amendment to the official 
zoning map (i.e. rezoning) may be initiated by the township board, the planning commission or 
by the owner or owners of the property that is the subject of the proposed amendment. All 
proposed amendments to the provisions of this ordinance or the official zoning map shall be 
referred to the planning commission for public hearing and recommendation to the township 
board, prior to consideration thereof by the township board pursuant to the authority and 
procedure established in Act. No. 184 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1943 (MCL 125.271 et 
seq.) Act No. 110 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 2006 (MCL 125.3101 et seq.), as amended. 

 
Sec. 2705. – Conditional amendment of the official zoning map: 
 

The Township Board shall have the authority to place conditions on an amendment to the 
official zoning map, commonly referred to as a conditional rezoning, provided the conditions 
have been voluntarily offered in writing by the applicant and are acceptable to the Township 
Board.  In exercising its authority to consider a conditional rezoning, the Township is also 
authorized to impose the following limitations: 
 

(a) An owner of land may voluntarily offer written conditions relating to the use and/or 
development of land for which a conditional rezoning is requested.  This offer may 
be made either at the time the application for conditional rezoning is filed, or 
additional conditions may be offered at a later time during the conditional rezoning 
process as set forth below. 
 
(1) The owner’s offer of conditions may not authorize uses or developments 

not permitted in the requested zoning district.  The owner’s offer of 
conditions shall bear a reasonable and rational relationship to the property 
for which the conditional rezoning is requested. 

 
(2) A conditional rezoning that would also require approval of a conditional use, 

variance or site plan under the terms of this ordinance shall not be effective 
until approval for a conditional use, variance or site plan is ultimately 
granted in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 

 
 

(b) The offer of conditions may be amended during the process of conditional rezoning 
consideration, provided that any amended or additional conditions are entered 
voluntarily by the owner and confirmed in writing.  An owner may withdraw in 
writing all or part of its offer of conditions any time prior to final rezoning action of 
the Township Board, provided that, if such withdrawal occurs subsequent to the 
Planning Commission’s public hearing on the original rezoning request, then the 



 

 

rezoning application shall be referred back to the Planning Commission for a new 
public hearing with appropriate notice and a new recommendation. 

 
(c) The procedure for consideration of Conditional Rezoning request by the Planning 

Commission and Township Board shall be the same as provided in Section 2702 
for all other requests for amendments to the official zoning map. The following 
additional information shall also be required: 

 
(1) A Conditional Rezoning request shall be initiated by the submission of a 

proposed Conditional Rezoning Agreement. A Conditional Rezoning 
Agreement shall include the following: 

 
a. A written statement prepared by the applicant that confirms the 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement was proposed by the applicant 
and entered into voluntarily. 

 
b. A written statement prepared by the applicant that confirms that the 

property shall not be used or developed in a manner that is 
inconsistent with conditions placed on the rezoning. 

 
c. A list of conditions proposed by the applicant. 
 
d. A time frame for completing the proposed improvements. 
 
e. A legal description of the land. 
 
f. A Sketch Plan in sufficient detail to illustrate any specific conditions 

proposed by the applicant. 
 

(2) The Notice of Public Hearing on a Conditional Rezoning request shall 
include a general description of the proposed agreement being considered. 
A review of the proposed agreement shall be conducted at the public 
hearing. 

 
(3) A Conditional Rezoning may be approved upon the criteria set forth in Sec. 

2704 and a finding and determination that all of the following are satisfied: 
 

a. The conditions, proposed development, and/or proposed use of the 
land are designed or proposed for public health, safety, and welfare 
purposes. 

 
b. The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use are 

not in material conflict with the Master Plan, or, if there is material 
conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the 
following: 

 
i. A change in Township policy since the Master Plan was 

adopted. 
 
ii. A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 
 
iii. An error in the Master Plan. 

 
c. The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use are in 

accordance with all terms and provisions of the zoning district to 
which the land is to be rezoned, except as otherwise allowed in the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 

 
d. The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use shall 

insure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 
 

(d) Upon approval by the Township Board of a Conditional Rezoning request and a 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement, as provided by this Section, the Zoning Map 
shall be amended to reflect a new zoning classification along with a relevant 
designation that will provide reasonable notice of the Conditional Rezoning 
Agreement. 

 



 

 

(e) A Conditional Rezoning Approval shall expire following a period of time from the 
effective date of the rezoning established by the Township Board, unless progress 
has been diligently pursued and substantial completion has occurred in 
accordance with permits issued by the Township. 

 
(1) In the event the conditional rezoning expires, the rezoning and the 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement shall be void and of no effect. 
 
(2) If the Conditional Rezoning becomes void, no development shall be 

undertaken and no permits for development shall be issued until such time 
as a new zoning district classification of the property has become effective 
as a result of one or both of the following actions that may be taken: 

 
a. The property owner seeks a new rezoning classification for the 

property; and/or 
 
b. The Township initiates a new rezoning request for the property to a 

reasonable district classification, in accordance with the 
conventional rezoning procedure. 

 
(f) Recording.  A Conditional Rezoning Approval shall not become effective until the 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement is recorded with the Washtenaw County Register 
of Deeds and a certified copy of the Agreement is filed with the Township Clerk. 

 
(g) Violation of Conditional Rezoning Agreement.  If development and/or actions are 

undertaken on or with respect to the property in violation of the Conditional 
Rezoning Agreement, such development and/or actions shall constitute a violation 
of this ordinance and deemed a nuisance per se.  In such case, the Township may 
issue a stop work order relative to the property and seek any other lawful remedies. 
Until curative action is taken to bring the property into compliance with the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement, the Township may withhold, or, following notice 
and an opportunity to be heard, revoke permits and certificates, in addition to or in 
lieu of such other lawful action to achieve compliance. 

 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any one or more sections, provisions, phrases 
or words of this ordinance shall be found to be invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such 
holding shall not affect the validity nor the enforceability of the remaining sections, provisions, 
phrases or words of this Ordinance unless expressly so determined by a Court of competent 
jurisdiction. 
 
SECTION 4.  PUBLICATION.  This ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation as required by law. 
 
SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a 
newspaper of general circulation as required by law. 
 
SECTION 6. REPEAL: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement • Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-4393 
 

To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Development Coordinator 
 

Re: 1st Reading of Resolution 2019-06, Proposed Ordinance 2019-487, amending 
Article 27 of the Zoning Ordinance to add the conditional rezoning text 
amendments. 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  April 24th, 2019 
 
 
Please be advised that the Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposed 
changes to Article 27 to add the conditional rezoning text amendments. The enclosed packet 
includes the following components: 
 

1. Planning Commission meeting minutes and amended recommendation 4/9/19  
2. Planning Commission meeting minutes and recommendation 1/22/19 
3. Planning Commission staff report 4/5/19 
4. Memo from Carlisle/Wortman Associates and proposed text amendments 12/13/18 
5. Recommended motion language 1/22/19 
6. Resolution and proposed text amendments 1/31/19 

 
Please be further advised that on April 9th, 2019 the Planning Commission made the following 
recommendation to the Township Board: 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krieg, supported by Commissioner Richie to amend the 
recommendation of approval to the Township Board of Trustees made on January 22, 2019 to 
read as follows: I move to recommend approval to the Township Board of Trustees to add the 
proposed conditional rezoning text amendment to Article XXVII. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
I respectfully request that you place this information packet and recommendation for approval 
on the May 7th, 2019 Board of Trustees meeting agenda for its consideration.  Please contact me 
with questions or concerns. 
 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President    Douglas J. Lewan, Executive Vice President    John L. Enos, Principal 
   David Scurto, Principal   Benjamin R. Carlisle, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal    Craig Strong, Principal    R. Donald Wortman, Principal   

Laura K. Kreps, Associate     Paul Montagno, Associate 

 
TO:  Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Zoning Coordinator 

Mike Radzik, Director of Community Services 
       
FROM: Richard K. Carlisle, AICP  

DATE: December 13, 2018 
 
RE: Conditional Rezoning Amendment 
 
Pursuant to our meeting with the Planning Commission, I have revised the amendment to 
the Zoning Ordinance for conditional rezonings. This is now ready for the Planning 
Commission to conduct its public hearing. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Yours Truly, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cc: Dennis McClain, Township Attorney 



1 

ARTICLE XXVII. - CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 
 
Sec. 2701. - Initiation of amendments:  
 

The township board may from time to time, on recommendation from the planning commission, 
amend, supplement or change the district boundaries or the regulations herein, or subsequently 
established herein. Amendments to the provisions of this ordinance (i.e. ordinance text amendment) 
may be initiated by the township board, the planning commission or by petition from one or more 
residents or property owners of the township. An amendment to the official zoning map (i.e. rezoning) 
may be initiated by the township board, the planning commission or by the owner or owners of the 
property that is the subject of the proposed amendment. All proposed amendments to the provisions of 
this ordinance or the official zoning map shall be referred to the planning commission for public hearing 
and recommendation to the township board, prior to consideration thereof by the township board 
pursuant to the authority and procedure established in Act. No. 184 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 
1943 (MCL 125.271 et seq.) Act No. 110 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 2006 (MCL 125.3101 et seq.), 
as amended. 
 
(Ord. No. 2003-327, 1-20-04) 
 
 
Sec. 2702. - Application procedure:  
 

An amendment to this ordinance text or the official zoning map shall be initiated by submission of a 
completed application on a form supplied by the community and economic development director, 
including an application fee, which shall be established by resolution of the township board. 
Amendments initiated by the township board or planning commission do not require an application or 
fee.  
 

(a) In the case of an amendment to the official zoning map, the application shall be 
accompanied by the following:  

 
(1) The name and address of the owner of the subject property and a statement of 

the applicant's interest in the subject property, if not the owner in fee simple 
title;  

 
(2) A legal description and street address of the subject property;  
 
(3) A written description of how the requested rezoning satisfies the requirements 

identified in section 2703;  
 
(4) A site analysis plan, the scale of which shall be no less than one inch = 200 feet 

and includes the following information:  
 

a. A title indicating the nature of the rezoning request, the applicant's 
name and the site address or general location;  

 



2 

b. A legend indicating the owner of record, the engineer, surveyor or 
drafter, as applicable, the date of submission, scale and north arrow;  

 
c. A boundary survey of the subject property;  
 
d. The location of existing site boundary lines, buildings, structures or 

other improvements, parking areas, driveways, points of ingress and 
egress for the site and adjacent parcels;  

 
e. The location, width and names of existing streets and public or private 

easements adjacent to the site;  
 
f. The location of existing and proposed man-made features, including but 

not limited to drainage or utility structures or improvements;  
 
g. The location of existing natural features, including but not limited to the 

location of existing drainage courses, regulated floodplains or wetlands 
and other relevant information the planning commission has 
determined to be necessary and essential to making an informed 
recommendation to the township board; and  

 
h. Existing and proposed zoning classification(s) of the site and adjacent 

parcels.  
 
(Ord. No. 2003-327, 1-20-04) 
 
 
Sec. 2703. - Amendment procedure—Public hearing and notice:  
 

(a) Upon certification by the community and economic development department that the 
application for amendment is complete, the item shall be scheduled before the planning 
commission to set a public hearing.  

 
(b) In all cases of a text amendment or rezoning of individual or multiple properties, the 

planning commission shall conduct a public hearing to present the request and to 
receive comments. Notice of the hearing shall be given in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 103 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Act 110 of 2006, as 
amended. An affidavit of mailing shall be maintained.  

 
(c) If an individual property or several adjacent properties are proposed for rezoning, the 

township shall give separate notice for each property for which approval is being 
considered. Such notice shall be consistent with the notice required by paragraph (b) 
above.  

 
(d) A sign shall be placed on the subject property to inform the public that a request for 

rezoning has been filed, and to indicate the location of information regarding the 



3 

request. The sign shall be placed in a conspicuous location where it is readable from the 
public road, not less than 15 days prior to the date the application will be considered for 
approval. The sign shall meet the following requirements:  

 
(1) The sign shall be three feet by three feet in area, painted white with black 

lettering.  
 
(2) The sign shall state "This property petitioned for rezoning from XX to XX" with 

four-inch tall block letters. The sign shall also state "If you have any questions 
call the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Community Development Department at 
734-485-3943" and indicate the rezoning identification number assigned by the 
township with two-inch tall block letters.  

 
(e) Following the public hearing, the planning commission shall identify and evaluate 

factors relevant to the petition and the criteria in this article and shall make its 
recommendation to the township board.  

 
(f) The community and economic development department shall forward a copy of the 

application, planning commission recommendation and minutes of the public hearing to 
the township board and request the township clerk to place the application on the 
agenda of the next regularly scheduled meeting of the township board.  

 
(g) Following receipt of the findings and recommendation of the planning commission, the 

township board shall consider the proposed amendment. The township board shall 
conduct two readings on the proposed amendment. The township board then shall 
approve or deny the amendment, based on the criteria contained in this article.  

 
(Ord. No. 2003-327, 1-20-04; Ord. No. 2008-386, 10-7-08)  
 
 
Sec. 2704. - Criteria for amendment of the official zoning map:  
 

In considering any petition for an amendment to the official zoning map, the planning commission 
and township board shall consider the following criteria in making its findings, recommendations and 
decision:  
 

(a) Consistency with the goals, policies and future land use map of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Master Plan, including any sub-area or corridor plans. If conditions have 
changed since the master plan was adopted, the rezoning may be found to be consistent 
with recent development trends in the area.  

 
(b) Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental 

features with all uses permitted in the proposed zoning district compared to uses 
permitted under current zoning.  

 



4 

(c) Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through 
developing the property with at least one of the uses permitted under the current 
zoning.  

 
(d) The compatibility of all uses permitted in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 

uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature 
of use, traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property 
values compared to uses permitted under current zoning.  

(e) The capacity of township utilities and services sufficient to accommodate all the uses 
permitted in the requested district without compromising the "health, safety and 
welfare" of the township.  

 
(f) The capacity of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected 

traffic generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. A traffic impact 
study in accordance with the requirements of the township traffic impact study 
ordinance shall be provided if the proposed rezoning district permits uses that could 
generate 100 or more directional trips during the peak hour, or at least 1,000 more trips 
per day than the majority of the uses that could be developed under the current zoning, 
as determined by the community and economic development department.  

 
(g) The apparent demand for the types of uses permitted in the requested zoning district in 

the township, and surrounding area, in relation to the amount of land in the township, 
and surrounding area, currently zoned and available to accommodate the demand.  

 
(h) The boundaries of the requested zoning district are sufficient to meet the dimensional 

regulations for the zoning district listed in article XX, schedule of regulations.  
 
(i) If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district shall be more appropriate 

from the township's perspective than another zoning district.  
 
(j) The requested rezoning will not create an isolated and unplanned spot zone.  
 
(k) The request has not previously been submitted within the past one year, unless 

conditions have changed, or new information has been provided.  
 
(l) Other criteria as determined by the planning commission or township board which 

would protect the health and safety of the public, protect public and private investment 
in the township, and enhance the overall quality of life in Charter Township of Ypsilanti.  

 
(Ord. No. 2003-327, 1-20-04)  
 
 
Sec. 2705. – Conditional amendment of the official zoning map: 
 

The Township Board shall have the authority to place conditions on an amendment to the official 
zoning map, commonly referred to as a conditional rezoning, provided the conditions have been 



5 

voluntarily offered in writing by the applicant and are acceptable to the Township Board.  In exercising 
its authority to consider a conditional rezoning, the Township is also authorized to impose the following 
limitations: 
 

(a) An owner of land may voluntarily offer written conditions relating to the use and/or 
development of land for which a conditional rezoning is requested.  This offer may be 
made either at the time the application for conditional rezoning is filed, or additional 
conditions may be offered at a later time during the conditional rezoning process as set 
forth below. 
 
(1) The owner’s offer of conditions may not authorize uses or developments not 

permitted in the requested new zoning district.  The owner’s offer of conditions 
shall bear a reasonable and rational relationship to the property for which the 
conditional rezoning is requested. 

 
(2) Any use or development proposed as part of an offer of conditionsA conditional 

rezoning that would also require special use approval of a conditional use, 
variance or site plan under the terms of this ordinance shall not be effective 
until may only be commenced if special use approval for a conditional use, 
variance or site plan such use or development is ultimately granted in 
accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 

 
(3) Any use or development proposed as part of an offer of conditions that would 

require a variance under the terms of this ordinance may only be commenced if 
a variance for such use or development is ultimately granted by the Zoning 
Board of Appeals in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 

 
(4) Any use or development proposed as part of an offer of conditions that would 

require site plan approval under the terms of this ordinance may only be 
commenced if site plan approval for such use or development is ultimately 
granted in accordance with the terms of this ordinance. 

 
(b) The offer of conditions may be amended during the process of conditional rezoning 

consideration, provided that any amended or additional conditions are entered 
voluntarily by the owner and confirmed in writing.  An owner may withdraw in writing 
all or part of its offer of conditions any time prior to final rezoning action of the 
Township Board, provided that, if such withdrawal occurs subsequent to the Planning 
Commission’s public hearing on the original rezoning request, then the rezoning 
application shall be referred back to the Planning Commission for a new public hearing 
with appropriate notice and a new recommendation. 

 
(c) The procedure for consideration of Conditional Rezoning request by the Planning 

Commission and Township Board shall be the same as provided in Section 2702 for all 
other requests for amendments to the official zoning map. and the requirements of said 
Sections shall be applicable to Conditional Rezoning in addition to tThe following 
additional information shall also be required: 

 



6 

(1) A Conditional Rezoning request shall be initiated by the submission of a 
proposed Conditional Rezoning Agreement. A Conditional Rezoning Agreement 
shall include the following: 

 
a. A written statement prepared by the applicant that confirms the 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement was proposed by the applicant and 
entered into voluntarily. 

 
b. A written statement prepared by the applicant that confirms that the 

property shall not be used or developed in a manner that is inconsistent 
with conditions placed on the rezoning. 

 
c. A list of conditions proposed by the applicant. 
 
d. A time frame for completing the proposed improvements. 
 
e. A legal description of the land. 
 
f. A Sketch Plan in sufficient detail to illustrate any specific conditions 

proposed by the applicant. 
 

(2) The Notice of Public Hearing on a Conditional Rezoning request shall include a 
general description of the proposed agreement being considered. A review of 
the proposed agreement shall be conducted at the public hearing. 

 
(3) A Conditional Rezoning may be approved upon the criteria set forth in Sec. 2704 

and a finding and determination that all of the following are satisfied: 
 

a. The conditions, proposed development, and/or proposed use of the 
land are designed or proposed for public health, safety, and welfare 
purposes. 

 
b. The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use are not in 

material conflict with the Master Plan, or, if there is material conflict 
with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the following: 

 
i. A change in Township policy since the Master Plan was adopted. 
 
ii. A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 
 
iii. An error in the Master Plan. 

 
c. The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use are in 

accordance with all terms and provisions of the zoning district to which 
the land is to be rezoned, except as otherwise allowed in the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 

 



7 

d. The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use shall 
insure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 

 
(d) Upon approval by the Township Board of a Conditional Rezoning request and a 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement, as provided by this Section, the Zoning Map shall be 
amended to reflect a new zoning classification along with a relevant designation that 
will provide reasonable notice of the Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 

 
(e) A Conditional Rezoning Approval shall expire following a period of time from the 

effective date of the rezoning established by the Township Board, unless progress has 
been diligently pursued and substantial completion has occurred in accordance with 
permits issued by the Township. 

 
(1) In the event the conditional rezoning expires, the rezoning and the Conditional 

Rezoning Agreement shall be void and of no effect. 
 
(2) If the Conditional Rezoning becomes void, no development shall be undertaken 

and no permits for development shall be issued until such time as a new zoning 
district classification of the property has become effective as a result of one or 
both of the following actions that may be taken: 

 
a. The property owner seeks a new rezoning classification for the 

property; and/or 
 
b. The Township initiates a new rezoning request for the property to a 

reasonable district classification, in accordance with the conventional 
rezoning procedure. 

 
(f) Recording.  A Conditional Rezoning Approval shall not become effective until the 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement is recorded with the Washtenaw County Register of 
Deeds and a certified copy of the Agreement is filed with the Township Clerk. 

 
(g) Violation of Conditional Rezoning Agreement.  If development and/or actions are 

undertaken on or with respect to the property in violation of the Conditional Rezoning 
Agreement, such development and/or actions shall constitute a violation of this 
ordinance and deemed a nuisance per se.  In such case, the Township may issue a stop 
work order relative to the property and seek any other lawful remedies. Until curative 
action is taken to bring the property into compliance with the Conditional Rezoning 
Agreement, the Township may withhold, or, following notice and an opportunity to be 
heard, revoke permits and certificates, in addition to or in lieu of such other lawful 
action to achieve compliance. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 22, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
Chair Jason Iacoangeli called the regular meeting to order at 6:31 pm in the Ypsilanti 
Township Civic Center Board Room 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Commissioners Present:   Chair Jason Iacoangeli and Commissioners Gloria Peterson, 

Bill Sinkule, Stan Eldridge, Sally Richie, Laurence Krieg and 
Muddasar Tawakkul  

 
Commissioners Absent:   None  
 
Others in Attendance: Megan Mason-Minock, Carlisle-Wortman Associates; Elliot 

Smith, OHM; Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Development 
Coordinator 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL  

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 11, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krieg supported by Commissioner 
Eldridge to approve the minutes of the December 11, 2018 Regular Meeting. The 
motion carried unanimously.   

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge supported by Commissioner 
Sinkule to approve the agenda. The motion carried unanimously. 

   
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PLAN REVIEW 
 

A. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN AND SPECIAL LAND USE – GROUP 10 
MANAGEMENT – 2169 WASHTENAW AVENUE – TO CONSIDER THE 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN AND SPECIAL LAND USE PERMIT FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A 5,400 SQUARE FOOT GAS STATION AND 
CONVENIENCE STORE LOCATED AT 2169 WASHTENAW AVENUE, PARCEL 
K-11-06-478-001.  

 
Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Zoning Coordinator said the site is zoned B-3, General 
Business, is .71 acres and currently vacant.  In addition to the store there would be 8 
gas pumps.  There would be no auto repair onsite.  Per Section 306 the proposed use is 
principally permitted subject to Special Conditions which are outlined in Section 1829 of 
the Township Zoning Ordinance.  The proposed would require a Special Land Use 
permit as outlined in Section 2119 of the Zoning Ordinance.  The public notice was 
published on January 3, 2019.  The project received preliminary site plan approval on 
December 16, 2015 but since it has expired the applicant resubmitted their application.  
South, east and west of the property is Master Planned Urban Commercial Corridor and 
zoned B-3, General Business and all the uses are commercial.  North of the property is 
the City of Ypsilanti and the use is commercial.   
 
Carlisle-Wortman Associates reviewed the preliminary site plan and Special Land Use 
permit and in a November 12, 2018 letter recommended approval with the following 
conditions: reduce parking requirements by reducing building size or providing more 
parking or obtain a waiver from the Planning Commission and confirming the ability to 
reduce lighting from 11 pm to sunrise.  OHM recommended approval in a November 16, 
2018 letter.  Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority recommended approval in a 
September 6, 2018 letter with minor comments related to detailed engineering.  
Washtenaw County Water Resources offered comments related to detailed engineering 
in a January 16, 2019 letter.  Washtenaw County Road Commission stated the plans 
meet technical approval in a November 16, 2018 letter.  Michigan Department of 
Transportation offered preliminary approval and the applicant would need to obtain a 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 22, 2019 
Page 2 
 
permit.  Ypsilanti Township Fire Department recommended approval in a November 13, 
2018 letter.  
 
She pointed out that motions for approval should be separate, one for the preliminary 
site plan and one for the Special Land Use permit.  One public comment was received 
via email from the property owner to the east.   
 
Megan Masson-Minock, Carlisle-Wortman Associates said the proposed size of the 
store is large compared to surrounding stores which are between 2,600 and 1,200 
square feet.  She also highlighted that this parcel has been designated as a node in the 
“Re-imagine Washtenaw Corridor” plan which promotes buildings being placed at the 
hard corner.  The corner has also been identified as a “super stop” location for the 
AAATA.  The applicant said the gas station would not meet the vision of the 
improvement plan and the building could not be placed at the hard corner because the 
gas pumps need the visibility.  The applicant would not be able to place the bus pull off 
lane on Washtenaw Avenue because that would remove access from that road.  The 
applicant also provided details on why they could not meet the corridor improvement 
study in a memo dated October 31, 2018.  She stated the Commission had to decide 
whether or not to grant a parking waiver.  Based on the size of the store they are 
deficient in 6 parking spaces.  She said there are three options to meet the parking 
requirements: a) reduce the parking requirement by reducing the building size, b) 
provide more parking onsite or c) seek a parking waiver.  The applicant chose to pursue 
the waiver.  There will be pedestrian access to the site and the applicant asked the 
Commission to count each space at the gas pumps towards the overall site 
requirement.  The Ordinance does not recognize pump spaces as parking spaces.   
 
She stated one outstanding item from their review was exterior lighting.  Section 2110, 
subsection ii, item I states all business exterior lighting fixtures be turned off between 11 
pm and sunrise unless used for security purposes or the business is open past 11 pm.  
She said there was no indication that lights would be turned off or if they would meet the 
exception in the Ordinance.  She said Carlisle-Wortman recommends approval for both 
preliminary site plan and Special Land Use with the conditions of parking and exterior 
lighting.   
 
Commissioner Sinkule asked why the super stop was not on the site plan.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated because the applicant could not meet the requirements.  
She continued that there is little in the Ordinance that could enforce meeting 
requirements along the corridor and recommended that be looked into during the 
Ordinance update.   
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli said he had serious concerns about the design.  He said the 
building’s location on the lot would look like a brick wall when facing it from the CVS.  
He said the idea that the pumps needed to be visible is false in an urban environment 
and believed the building could go at the hard corner and the pumps could go where the 
proposed building was on the site plan.  He said that there would be a lot of pedestrian 
traffic due to the bus stop and the residential neighborhood to the south and having the 
building at the corner would allow greater walkability.   
 
Commissioner Krieg said he has worked with the “Re-Imagine Washtenaw” committee 
for 11 years and the plan is a long-term project and he believed that if the Commission 
were to approve the gas station it would set the plans back.  He said that he would not 
approve the design because it did not meet the purpose of the 2014 Corridor 
Improvement Study, he believed it would not be compatible with future land uses in the 
area and that it would not contribute any necessary functions or contribute to the 
Township’s growth.   
 
Commissioner Sinkule asked if the Commission had to approve the plans because they 
were approved in 2015.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated the Township attorney would be best suited to answer that 
question and said Carlisle-Wortman were not part of the 2015 review.   



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 22, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli said that because the original site plan expired, the plans in 
front of the Commission would be treated as brand new.   
 
Commissioner Peterson asked where parking would be located.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated it was in front of the building and wrapped around.   
 
Commissioner Richie commented that the gas station would not fit the vision.  She 
asked why the site plan could not be changed to better fit.  She said the intersection 
was one of the busiest in the county and the pumps should not have to be visible.  She 
said she would vote no.   
 
Commissioner Tawakkul asked how long the parcel has been vacant and if the 
applicant has been the owner since then.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said approximately 2 years.   
 
The applicant responded yes from the audience.  
 
Commissioner Tawakkul asked if the Commission was stating as a body they do not 
want a gas station at that site at all or if they were stating that they would like a gas 
station but it would need to meet all criteria.  
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli said he did not mind the gas station but it had to meet all 
criteria.  He said that if the Commissioners were not comfortable making a decision 
because the attorney was not present, he would be fine with a motion to table.   
 
Elliot Smith, OHM Advisors said his office confirmed that all past approval letters that 
had contingencies had been addressed before issuing their letter.  He said they 
recommended approval from an engineering standpoint.   
 
Scott Tousignant, Boss Engineering, 3121 E. Grand River, Howell MI said the only 
changes made to the new plan was increasing the sidewalk width to 8 feet and canopy 
light levels.  He said they went back to all of the agencies and have either gotten 
approval or are close to getting approval.  He said they were prepared to add a row of 
shrubs to the south side of the building along the property line and to improve the 
aesthetics on the building.  He justified fewer parking spaces with the claim there would 
be pedestrian use.  He agreed that the AAATA bus lane created issues and worked with 
Michigan Department of Transportation to get approved for a right turn only in and out 
access point on Washtenaw Avenue.   
 
Jack Knowles, Group 10 Management stated he was surprised at the comments 
because in 2015 they received unanimous approval.  They have built several gas 
stations and 5,400 square feet is in the middle in terms of size.  He said the design and 
materials are an improvement over the station that was there previously and what is in 
the area.  He added most business is at the gas pumps and people leave their vehicles 
at the pump when going inside the store which would free up parking spaces for others.  
He said the bus stop would not work for any business at that corner since it would take 
away Washtenaw Avenue access.  He said building at the hard corner would be a 
problem because people want “easy in/out” to access the pumps.   
 
Commissioner Richie asked why the store size could not be reduced to add parking and 
why the plan could not be reversed.   
 
Mr. Knowles said they have worked with the Township to include as much criteria as 
they could.  He said the Master Plan is a guide and there needs to be flexibility.   
 
Commissioner Richie said it would be possible for it to be built differently to meet all the 
criteria.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked why they didn’t build when originally approved.   



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 22, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 
Mr. Knowles said projects were delayed and someone lost track of timelines.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge said it did not matter what way the building faced, someone 
would face a large back wall.  He said the parcel had been vacant for longer than 3 
years, closer to 6-7 years and he would vote to approve.   
 
Commissioner Krieg said the goal is to make Washtenaw Avenue a walkable area and 
he does not think people would want to have a cup of coffee at a gas station if they 
were walking.  He said gas stations are 100% designed for vehicles.   
 
Mr. Knowles said every business on Washtenaw Avenue is vehicle dependent and they 
tried to make their plan fit the criteria by widening the sidewalk.  
 
Commissioner Eldridge reminded the Commissioners that the gas station at Washtenaw 
Avenue and Cornell was torn down recently and rebuilt and the store portion was not 
moved to the front of the parcel.  He said this location was part of “Re-Imagine 
Washtenaw” and that there have been diversions from the vision.  He asked if there 
were any alternatives that would add 6 parking spaces.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said the applicant was clear they would like to maintain the size of 
the building and to obtain a parking waiver.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked about the lighting.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said they needed to know if the lights would be turned off at 11 pm 
and if not, the reason(s) why.   
 
Mr. Knowles said the station would be open 24 hours so the lights would be on all night.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked if there would be interior and exterior security cameras. 
 
Mr. Knowles said yes and they would provide tapes to law enforcement as needed.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge said he agreed that the proposed super stop should be installed 
prior to Hewitt Road for safety and traffic reasons.   
 
Commissioner Richie questioned why the Commissioners would grant a parking waiver 
since Mr. Knowles said the area and gas station was vehicle dependent.   
 
Mr. Knowles said they feel parking spaces are sufficient based on their past experience 
but if parking was that big of a concern he would reduce the building size.   
 
The public hearing opened at 7:26 pm 
 
Commission Tawakkul asked if the neighboring property owner who emailed comments 
responded after they received the requested documentation.   
 
Ms. Wilson said no, the owner wanted his comments included in that evening’s meeting.  
 
Commissioner Eldridge recalled that in 2015 the applicant tried to enter into an 
agreement for extra parking but neighboring property owners were uninterested.   
 
Mr. Knowles confirmed and said to his knowledge that has not changed. 
 
The public hearing closed at 7:28 pm 
 
Commissioner Krieg said he wanted the Township attorney’s input on whether they had 
to approve the plans because they were approved in 2015 and suggested tabling the 
discussion.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge said he opposed this.   



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 22, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge to approve the Preliminary Site 
Plan for construction of a 5,400 square foot gas station and convenience store for 
a site zoned B-3, General Business located at 2169 Washtenaw Avenue, Parcel K-
11-06-478-001 with the following conditions:  
 

1. All exterior lighting be turned off at any time the store would be closed for 
business, if it remains a 24 hour business acceptable lighting would be 
approved.   

2. Applicant shall obtain applicable Washtenaw County Water Resources 
Commission, Washtenaw County Road Commission and Michigan 
Department of Transportation permits and all video interior and exterior 
camera systems be made available to law enforcement should they need 
them and that it be a 45 day system.   

 
And to approve the request of a Special Land Use permit for construction of a 
5,400 square foot gas station and convenience store for a site zoned B-3, General 
Business located at 2169 Washtenaw Avenue, Parcel K-11-06-478-001.  
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli said he wanted to split the motions into 2 separate votes and 
vote on the Special Land Use permit first.  Commissioner Eldridge approved.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge, supported by Commissioner 
Tawakkul to approve the request of a Special Land Use permit for construction of 
a 5,400 square foot gas station and convenience store for a site zoned B-3, 
General Business located at 2169 Washtenaw Avenue, Parcel K-11-06-478-001. 
 
The motion failed as follows:   
 
Richie: No     Krieg: No     Eldridge: Yes     Peterson: Yes     Sinkule: No      
Tawakkul: Yes     Iacoangeli: No  
 
Once the Special Land Use motion failed, Commissioner Eldridge withdrew his motion 
for preliminary site plan approval.   
 
Commissioner Peterson said she would be open to tabling the discussion to try and 
work with the applicant and obtain the attorney’s input.   
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli said that if the applicant is going to return for preliminary site 
plan, staff could put them on the next available agenda and tabling would not be 
necessary.  
 
Mr. Knowles said that because the plan approval was dependent on obtaining a land 
use permit the project was dead.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked if the applicant had to wait one year to resubmit since 
they were denied.  If so, the only option would be to reconsider at that evening’s 
meeting or the next.   
 
Ms. Wilson said the applicant could resubmit within one year if something changed.   
 
Commissioner Peterson asked on whose end.   
 
A discussion followed.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge reiterated his understanding that a reconsider motion would 
have to be made at the meeting or the next otherwise the applicant had to wait a year. 
 
Commissioner Krieg explained why he voted no to the applicant.  He suggested the 
applicant become familiar with what the ReImagine Washtenaw study looks like and 
perhaps they could consider submitting an application for a more harmonious business.   
 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 22, 2019 
Page 6 
 
Commissioner Tawakkul asked if the Commission was considering rescinding the 
motion so a motion could put forth to table.   
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli said they voted no because they did not think the gas station 
was harmonious with the use.  
 
Commissioner Krieg said he thought a motion to reconsider would be out of place.  He 
thought tabling could work because the Commission only voted on one motion.   
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli disagreed and said they needed to move on.   
 
Commissioner Peterson asked for confirmation that Commissioner Iacoangeli said if the 
applicant made changes they could come back.   
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli said if there was a significant change the staff could make a 
determination on whether or not to bring it back.   
 

B. ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – TO CONSIDER THE PROPOSED 
CHANGES TO ARTICLE XXVIII TO ADD THE CONDITIONAL REZONING 
TEXT AMENDMENTS.  

 
Ms. Masson-Minock highlighted some changes that were made.  On pages 4-5, Section 
2705, Item A, the numbers 1, 2, 3 and 4 were collapsed together.  Item C was updated 
in terms of the procedure for consideration of a Conditional Rezoning.  She said the 
next step would be a recommendation to the Township Board.   
 
Commissioner Tawakkul asked if any of the recommendations from the Economic 
Steering Committee were taken into account.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said yes.   
 
Commissioner Krieg said the revisions in Section 2705 were helpful and removed one 
of the biggest parts of confusion.   
 
Commissioner Richie agreed it was more user-friendly.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krieg, supported by Commissioner Richie 
to recommend approval to the Township Board of Trustees the proposed 
changes to Article XXVIII to add the Conditional Rezoning Text Amendments.   
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
6. OLD BUSINESS  
 
None 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. MASTER PLAN – TO PROVIDE INPUT ON THE MASTER PLAN UPDATES 
AND PROCESS.  

 
Ms. Masson-Minock said another Master Plan Workshop is scheduled for February 14-
16, 2019 and a flyer will be emailed out in the following week.  On February 14, 2019 
there will be an Open Studio from 12pm-8pm and on February 15, 2019 from 9pm-6pm.  
On February 16, 2019 there will be a free pancake breakfast with Township leadership 
and a panel discussion. 
 
Commissioner Krieg said “Neighborhoods, Jobs and Places” was confusing.   
 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT - TO PROVIDE INPUT ON THE PROPOSED 
ECORSE ROAD ZONING DISTRICT TEXT AMENDMENTS. 
 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 22, 2019 
Page 7 
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated they met with Neighborhood Watch from 
Oaklawn/Hawthorne and there were concerns about townhouses, the modern building 
designs and business owners not being able to expand.  Opinions were mixed on 
whether auto repair business and sales should be allowed.  Residents would like more 
small businesses and a family friendly area on Ecorse Road.  Sara Jo Shipley, 
Economic Business Director met with business owners and they saw value in diversity 
along the corridor.  They worry that their businesses were being limited.   
 
She said they want to alter the zoning concept to bring the scale down.  Instead of 3 
story buildings, make them 1-2 stories.  They also want to delay the schedule by at least 
one month to allow for more conversations with business owners and residents.   
 
Commissioner Tawakkul asked the average age of the businesses on Ecorse Road.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said there is a mix of generational and newer.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge said many are 15 years or older.   
 
8. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 
Michigan Association of Planning 
 

B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
Commissioner Richie said at the Fairfield Inn’s corner where pine trees are located 
there was a previous discussion where they agreed to re-landscape that area.  She 
asked if that was still going to happen.   
 
Ms. Wilson said she would look into it and report back.   
 
Commissioner Krieg gave an update on Washtenaw Avenue Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) 
Light.  A study was completed and AECOM is almost ready to go out and compete for 
grants.  He also said AAATA locates bus stops after intersections because the 
Transportation Research Board’s guidelines say it is safer.   
 
Commissioner Richie said she did not think the Township had any say in super stop bus 
locations.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge said he believed AAATA makes the suggestions but it is up to 
the property owner.   
 
Commissioner Krieg said when Re-Imagine consultants suggested super stops it was 
for a general idea of an area.  He said there are several bodies that need to approve the 
location and the Township is one of them.  AAATA suggests locations but everyone 
involved has to approve including the Township.   
 

C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE 
  
None 
 
9. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
Commissioner Eldridge mentioned recycle and trash would be delayed one day due to 
freezing temperatures.  
 
10. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

 
None 
 
11. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 22, 2019 
Page 8 
 
 
None 
 
12. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Ms. Wilson said the report was included in the Commissioner’s packets.   
 
13. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
None 

 
A motion was made by a Commissioner Peterson, supported by Commissioner 
Eldridge to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:10pm 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Laura Gough 
OCS Clerk  
 
Reviewed and approved, 
 
 
Laurence J. Krieg 
Secretary of the Planning Commission 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement 
 
 
TO:   Ypsilanti Township Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Development Coordinator 
 
DATE:   April 5th, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to amend the recommendation of approval to the Township Board of Trustees 

regarding the Conditional Rezoning Text Amendments to correct a typographical error. 
 
 

At the January 22nd, 2019 Planning Commission meeting, the following motion was recorded: 
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Krieg, supported by Commissioner Richie to recommend 
approval to the Township Board of Trustees the proposed changes to Article XXVIII to add the 
Conditional Rezoning Text Amendments. 

 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
Due to a Roman numeral typographical error, the Article of amendment should have been printed as 
Article 27 (XVII), not Article 28 (XVIII). The public notice had the correct Article listed and, therefore, 
no additional public hearing is required. Staff requests that the Planning Commission amends the 
recommendation of approval to accurately reflect the correct Article. 

 
 

Suggested Motions: The following suggested motions are intended to assist the Commission in making 
the desired motion of their choice. The Commission may utilize, add or reject any motion and/or 
conditions suggested herein as they deem appropriate. 

 
Motion to amend the recommendation of approval: 

 
“I move to amend the recommendation of approval to the Township Board of Trustees made     on 
January 22nd, 2019 to read as     follows: 

 
I move to recommend approval to the Township Board of Trustees to add the proposed Conditional 
Rezoning Text Amendments to Article XXVII     (27).” 

 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Charlotte Wilson, AICP 
Planning and Development Coordinator 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF THE APRIL 9, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
Chair Jason Iacoangeli called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 pm in the Ypsilanti 
Township Civic Center Board Room 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Commissioners Present:   Chair Jason Iacoangeli and Commissioners Gloria Peterson, 

Bill Sinkule, Stan Eldridge, Sally Richie, Laurence Krieg and 
Muddasar Tawakkul  

 
Commissioners Absent:   None  
 
Others in Attendance: Angela King, Township Attorney; Megan Mason-Minock, 

Carlisle-Wortman Associates; Charlotte Wilson, Planning 
and Development Coordinator 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL  

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 22, 2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Peterson supported by Commissioner 
Krieg to approve the minutes of the January 22, 2019 Regular Meeting. The 
motion carried unanimously.   

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge supported by Commissioner 
Sinkule to approve the agenda. The motion carried unanimously. 

   
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. OLD BUSINESS  
 

A. ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – TO AMEND THE RECOMMENDATION 
OF APPROVAL TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGARDING 
THE CONDITIONAL REZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS TO CORRECT A 
TYPOGRAPHICAL ERROR 

 
Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Zoning Coordinator said at the January 22, 2019 
Planning Commission meeting the board recommended approval to amend Article 
XXVIII to add conditional rezoning text amendments.  This was supposed to be in 
Article XXVII and the error was due to a Roman numeral typographic error.  Staff 
requests the Planning Commission amend the recommended motion of approval to 
accurately reflect the corrected Article.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krieg, supported by Commissioner Richie 
to amend the recommendation of approval to the Township Board of Trustees 
made on January 22, 2019 to read as follows: I move to recommend approval to 
the Township Board of Trustees to add the proposed conditional rezoning text 
amendment to Article XXVII.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – TO PROVIDE INPUT ON THE 
PROPOSED ECORSE ROAD ZONING DISTRICT TEXT AMENDMENTS.  

 
Megan Masson-Minock, Carlisle-Wortman Associates said this meeting would be a 
work session for a proposed zoning district for Ecorse Road.  There will be a Public 
Hearing at the next meeting in April 2019 and if it is recommended it would go to the 
Township Board of Trustees for a work session and at least two readings.  She said this 
would be the approach used for all other Township corridors such as Washtenaw, East 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 9, 2019 
Page 2 
 
Michigan, Huron, etc.  She said the amendments came out of the Placemaking Plan 
that was done in 2018.  Ecorse Road would move to form based zoning and other 
changes would be made including additional striping in the turn lane, on street parking 
and streetscape which includes trees, landscaping and lighting.  She stated the 
minimum rear setback requirement would change to 10 feet from 20 feet which would 
enable parking along the rear or sides of buildings.  
 
She said there were also proposed changes in the uses.  These include removing auto 
sales and auto repair (current businesses would be able to remain but no new 
businesses would be approved).   
 
Commissioner Richie asked for clarification about on street parking locations.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said many of the lots are shallow which makes parking difficult.  
She said they were considering a road diet and creating on street parking areas to help 
the area redevelop.   
 
She then gave a slideshow presentation detailing the steps one would take to determine 
design and use per zoning type including non-conforming structures.   
 
Commissioner Iacoangeli asked if detached single family homes could be built.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated no, only attached, in order to make the area more walkable.  
Any single family homes currently on Ecorse Road could remain.   
 
Commissioner Krieg asked for clarification on height limits for the site types.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said Type A is minimum single story and maximum two stories, 
Type B is minimum single story and maximum two stories with three stories allowed if 
there was a bonus like a courtyard, and Type C is minimum single story and maximum 
three stories.  Single story height would be 14 feet and two story properties would be 30 
feet.   
 
Commissioner Richie asked if one had a legal non-conforming use and the owner sells 
the property, would the non-conforming use run with the land.  
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated yes.  However if the owner abandons the use then the non-
conforming status can fall off.   
 
She asked the Commissioners if any changes would be necessary for the Public 
Hearing.  There were none.   
 

B. MASTER PLAN - TO PROVIDE INPUT ON THE MASTER PLAN UPDATES 
AND PROCESS.   

 
Ms. Wilson said the Master Plan reveal went well and there were positive comments.  
She said the Master Plan adoption is in the writing process and she will send it to the 
Commissioners for review when it is ready.   
 
The categories resulting from the Master Plan project are neighborhoods, jobs and 
places.  Neighborhoods have a strong sense of identity, jobs would be focused on 
economic development and revitalizing corridors and places would be focused on 
creating places to connect the Township.  She shared the Master Plan vision and 
mission statements.  She said the goals and objectives would be very specific in each 
category so those in charge of implementation are held accountable.   
 
The future land use map would move towards a more mixed use and Ms. Wilson gave a 
brief presentation on some map details.  A discussion followed between the 
Commissioners, Ms. Wilson and Ms. Masson-Minock.  Ms. Masson-Minock said the 
map as presented was not in final form and if the Commissioners had suggestions or 
changes they should let her know.   
 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 9, 2019 
Page 3 
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said the Economic Development department would work with a 
corridor’s zoning to recruit retailers and investments.  A discussion followed regarding 
individual corridors and their zoning designations.  She said in the future they would 
need to decide if corridors should have traditional based zoning or form based zoning.   
 
She discussed catalyst projects, which are projects that have an urgency to them as 
they will make things happen.  These include the Zoning Ordinance, healthy 
neighborhoods, Wiard Road connection near the American Center for Mobility, open 
space and agricultural preservation and social and cultural presence.  Healthy 
neighborhoods would be concentrated on preserving neighborhoods with increased 
safety, infrastructure investment, healthy food access, healthy environments, easy 
access to all forms of transportation, job creation and educational opportunities.  
Regarding the Wiard Road connection, there is no north/south connection between 
Wiard Road and East Michigan Avenue which cuts off neighborhoods and land parcels.  
She said this project is going to be difficult to get approved but it is vitally important.  
She then discussed open space and agricultural preservation and said this will be 
difficult as well due to the way the Township has been zoned.  She said this will have to 
be done in partnership with others to preserve land because it is not something that can 
be accomplished with zoning alone.  Social and cultural presence is already in the 
Township, it just needs to be focused.  Residents are upset that media narrative is 
always negative and want it changed.  She suggested public arts, cultural events and 
increased good public spaces as ways to accomplish this.   
 
She told the Commissioners they are drafting the Master Plan and it should be finished 
by end of April 2019 so it can be brought to them in May 2019.  Per state law the plan 
will need to available for review by adjoining communities for either 61 or 63 days and 
during that time it would also be discussed with the community at neighborhood watch 
meetings and public meetings.  Once a Public Hearing was completed the 
Commissioners could then recommend approval to the Board of Trustees.  The process 
should be done by end of summer 2019 or early fall 2019.   
 
Commissioner Krieg asked if there were plans with the City of Ypsilanti to coordinate 
plans or ideas.   
 
Ms. Mason-Minock stated the City is working with the Township on Ecorse Road zoning 
and a joint corridor improvement agency.  Throughout the Master Plan process the City 
Planner has given her opinion and there are partnership opportunities with the catalyst 
projects as well.  She said she was a part of the City’s Master Plan process 6 years ago 
and is cognizant of that. 
 
8. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 
Michigan Association of Planning 
 

B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
Commissioner Krieg said his term as a member of the Ann Arbor Area Transportation 
Authority (AAATA) Board ends at the end of the month.   
 

C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE 
  
None 
 
9. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
Commissioner Eldridge said recreational marijuana continues to be a discussed issue.  
The first reading occurred one week ago so the Township could opt out while waiting to 
see what the regulations imposed by the state would be.   
 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 9, 2019 
Page 4 
 
Angela King, Township Attorney, said this has to do with the business aspect of the 
marijuana industry, not the individual use.  Individual use is not affected by opting out.   
 
10. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

 
Commissioner Iacoangeli said at the last meeting Conditional Use Permits were issued 
for fireworks sales.   
 
Attorney King stated the Township recently adopted an ordinance which restricts when 
fireworks can be used.   
 
11. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
None 
 
12. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Ms. Wilson said the report was included in the Commissioner’s packets.  She added 
that Hampton Inn Suites had a pre-construction meeting on April 2, 2019 and they are 
ready to begin construction with a June 2020 opening date.   
 
13. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
None 

 
A motion was made by a Commissioner Peterson, supported by Commissioner 
Sinkule to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:21pm 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Laura Gough 
OCS Clerk  
 
Revised and approved, 
 
 
Laurence J. Krieg 
Secretary of the Planning Commission 
 









 McLAIN & WINTERS 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

61 N. HURON 
YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48197 

(734) 481-1120  
DENNIS O. McLAIN                                                                                                                                                 FAX (734) 481-8909 
WM. DOUGLAS WINTERS                                                                                                                     E-MAIL: mcwinlaw@gmail.com 
ANGELA B. KING 

       
     April 17, 2019   
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 

 
 
 

Re: Request for Transfer of LightSpeed Communications, LLC 
 Telecommunications Permit Transfer Request  

 
Dear Clerk Roe: 
 
As we recently discussed, I reviewed the original Right-of-Way 
telecommunication permits issued to LightSpeed on January 7, 2019.  This 
particular permit is being assigned to Metro Fibernet.   
 
Paragraph 11 of the original Permit entitled “Assignment” allows the 
assignment or transfer of all rights under the Permit subject to: 
 

11.1 No such transfer or assignment or change in the control of the 
Company shall be effective under this Permit, without Municipality’s prior  

  approval (not to be unreasonably withheld), during the time period  
from the Effective Date until the completion of the construction of the  
Telecommunication Facilities in those portions of the Public Right-of-Way   
identified on Exhibit A.  
 
11.2 After the completion of such construction, Company must provide  
 notice to Municipality of such transfer, assignment or change in control  
 no later than thirty (30) days after such occurrence; provided, 
 however:  
 

11.2.1 Any transferee or assignee of this Permit shall be 
qualified to perform under its terms and conditions and comply with 
applicable law; shall be subject to the obligations of this Permit, 
including responsibility for any defaults which occurred prior to the 

mailto:mwatty@voyager.net


Karen Lovejoy Roe  
Re: LightSpeed Communications, LLC  
April 17, 2019  
Page 2 
 
 

transfer or assignment; shall supply Municipality with the information 
requested under Section 3.1; and shall comply with any updated 
insurance and performance bond requirements under Sections 6 
and 8 respectively, which Municipality reasonably deems necessary, 
and  

 
11.2.2. In the event of a change in control, it shall not be an 
entity lacking the qualifications to assure Company’s ability to 
perform under the terms and conditions of this Permit and comply 
with applicable law; and Company shall comply with any updated 
insurance and performance bond requirements under Sections 6 
and 8 respectively, which Municipality reasonably deems necessary. 

 
Based upon my review of the terms and provisions of the Permit, the Township 
Board should move forward with the approval of the Transfer Request unless 
there is a compelling reason why the request the should be denied.  As of the 
dictation of this letter, I am aware of no such compelling reason.  Further, based 
on the timing of the Request and the form of the Request, it would appear 
construction has not been completed.  If it had been completed, no Request 
would be necessary and the Township would only be entitled to receive a Notice 
of the Transfer.   
 
Although 11.1 does not address any requirement for the transferee to provide 
evidence of updated insurance certificates, I would suggest the Board require 
updated certificates as a condition of the approval.  
 
Please feel free to contact this office if there are any further questions.  
Otherwise, I believe this satisfies your request.  
 
       Sincerely, 
 
  
 

Dennis O. McLain 
/dc 
 
Cc: Township Board 
 Wm. Douglas Winters  



2019 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP SECOND AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of _______, 2019, by and between the 
Township Board of Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, parties of the first part and the Board of 
Washtenaw County Road Commissioners, parties of the second part. 
 
WHEREAS, the parties of the first part desire that certain improvements be made upon the local roads 
in the Township of Ypsilanti, and   
 
WHEREAS, proper authority is provided to the parties of the agreement under the provisions in Act 51 
of Public Acts of 1951 as amended, 
 
WHEREAS, it is understood that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will be a named insured on the 
Washtenaw County Road Commission’s coverages for liability for the activities described herein.  The 
Road Commission will submit a certificate of insurance evidencing such coverages to the Township 
Clerk prior to implementation of services under the contract. Each party to this contract shall be 
responsible for the acts and omissions of its employees and agents. 
 
IT IS NOW THEREFORE AGREED, the parties of the second part will accomplish the improvements 
as specified herein, all in accordance with the standards of the parties of the second part. 
 
1. Gault Farms, Nancy Park & Shady Knolls Subdivisions: 

Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Coleman Street, Georgina Street, Jay 
Avenue, Jeffery Street, Juneau Road, Molner Street, Borgstrom Avenue, Levona Street, 
Janet Avenue, Arthur Street, Shirley Drive, Marcus Avenue, Clarita Street, Evelyn 
Avenue, Share Avenue, Lester Avenue, Hull Avenue, Gault Drive, and Ruth Avenue. 
Estimated project cost: $  76,300.00 
 

2. West Willow & Turtle Creek Subdivisions: 
Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Mary Catherine Avenue, Chevrolet 
Avenue, Eileen Street, Carol Ann Avenue, Lori Avenue, Zephyr Street, Studebaker 
Avenue, Buick Avenue, Jeff Avenue, Desoto Avenue, Nash Avenue, Ravinewood 
Avenue, Sunnyglen Avenue, Glengrove Avenue, Cedarcliff Avenue, Brooktree Court, 
Briardale Court, Pineridge Court, and Ponderosa Court.   
Estimated project cost:  $  43,200.00 

 
3. Paint Creek Farms Subdivision: 

Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Mapleview Lane, Hickory Ridge Drive, 
Hickory Ridge Court, Maplehurst Drive, Creekside Circle, Oakridge Drive, Oakbrook 
Drive, Cottonwood Drive, Oakbrook Court, and Oakhurst Drive.   
Estimated project cost:  $  36,600.00 

 
4. Deauville Parish Subdivision: 

Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Rue Deauville, Rue Willette and Rue 
Vendome.   
Estimated project cost:  $  18,100.00 

 
5. Lay Garden Subdivision: 

Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Allen Avenue, Jerome Avenue, Lamay 
Avenue and Whitman Avenue.   
Estimated project cost:  $  20,800.00 

  



2019 Ypsilanti Township Second Agreement 
Page Two 
 
 

 
6. Creekside Village West Subdivision: 

Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Indigo Lane, Indigo Court, Burdock 
Street, Amaranth Lane, Loon Hollow Drive, Prairie Street, Lakeway Street, Lakeway 
Court, Plainview Street, Ringneck Drive, and Wing Street.   
Estimated project cost:  $  33,200.00 

 
7. Whispering Meadows Subdivision: 

Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Trillium Drive, Jonquil Lane, Tamarack 
Lane, Lily Drive, Lupin Court, and Dogwood Street.   
Estimated project cost:  $  10,500.00 
 

8. Partridge Creek North Subdivision: 
Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Eagle Trace Court, Eagle Trace Drive, 
Creek Bend Drive, Breezewood Court, Pebblestone Drive, Eden Court, Reflection Court, 
Mapledale Drive, Hummingbird Court, Hummingbird Drive, Blue Jay Drive, Woodpecker 
Court, Sofia Drive and Thornhill Drive.   
Estimated project cost:  $  38,500.00 
 

9. Edison Avenue, Packard Road to Burns Avenue: 
Work to include milling the existing pavement, the placement of 2” HMA resurfacing and 
HMA wing curbing, structure adjustments, and associated project restoration. 
Estimated project cost: $  83,900.00 

 
 

 
 

AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
 
2019 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM 
 Gault Farms, Nancy Park & Shady Knolls Subdivisions $  76,300.00 
 West Willow & Turtle Creek Subdivisions $  43,200.00 
 Paint Creek Farms Subdivision $  36,600.00 
 Deauville Parish Subdivision $  18,100.00 
 Lay Garden Subdivision $  20,800.00 
 Creekside Village West Subdivision $  33,200.00 
 Whispering Meadows Subidvision $  10,500.00 
 Partridge Creek North Subdivision $  38,500.00 
 Edison Avenue $  83,900.00 
 Subtotal $361,100.00 
 
 Less WCRC 2019 Conventional Matching Funds $  56,743.07 
 
 
ESTIMATED AMOUNT TO BE PAID BY YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT DURING 2019: $304,356.93 
  



2019 Ypsilanti Township Second Agreement 
Page Three 
 
 
 
FOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ ____________________________________  
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor       Witness 
 
 
 
___________________________________ ____________________________________  
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk        Witness 
 
 
FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ _____________________________________  
Douglas E. Fuller, Chair        Witness 
 
 
 
_________________________________      _____________________________________  
Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, Managing Director Witness 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 
 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to authorize circuit court litigation to abate public nuisances at 1594 
Andrea St and 1499 Grove Rd in the amount of $20,000 funded in account 101-
950.000-801.023 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  April 25, 2019 
 
The Office of Community Standards has investigated public nuisances at the following locations 
and authorization is requested to engage legal services to abate said nuisances. 
 
1594 ANDREA ST 
This single family house in the Sugarbrook neighborhood has been vacant for several months 
following the death of its owner.  It was inspected pursuant to an administrative warrant on 
April 23, 2019 resulting in condemnation of the structure.  No probate records have been found 
identifying a responsible party available to serve official notice.  The house and detached 
garage are structurally unsound and the property is densely littered with blight inside and out.  
Authorization is requested to engage legal services to abate this public nuisance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

1499 GROVE RD 
This single family house in the Sugarbrook neighborhood has been vacant for several months.  
OCS staff was eventually able to make contact with its owner, Pam Fletcher, who indicated she 
was working with the Washtenaw County Treasurer’s Office and was unable to make repairs.  
Ms. Fletcher failed to register the vacant property and it was then inspected pursuant to an 
administrative warrant on April 23, 2019.  The certificate of occupancy has been suspended, the 
house in uninhabitable due to serious code violations and vermin infestation, and the outside 
yard is littered with blight.  Authorization is requested to engage legal services, if necessary, to 
abate this public nuisance.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 
 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to authorize circuit court litigation to abate public nuisances by 
padlocking at 5900 Bridge Rd #408 and 418 Villa Dr in the amount of $20,000 
funded in account 101-950.000-801.023 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  April 25, 2019 
 
The Office of Community Standards has investigated public nuisances at the following locations 
and authorization is requested to engage legal services to abate said nuisances by padlocking. 
 
5900 BRIDGE RD #408 
Apt# 408 of the Lake Pointe high rise apartment building at 5900 Bridge Rd was the scene of a 
search warrant executed by LAWNET and the Sheriff’s Office CAT Team on March 29, 2019.  The 
narcotics trafficking investigation revealed that the apartment was empty and being used as a 
“stash house” where nobody actually lived, but where drugs were processed and sold.  Police 
seized a loaded pistol and quantities of crack cocaine, powder cocaine, heroin, fentanyl, and 
drug trafficking equipment from inside the apartment and from a vehicle stored in the parking 
lot associated with the investigation.  The property is owned and operated by Lake Pointe-
Trafalgar Limited Partnership of Bloomfield Hills, Michigan.  A second search warrant related to 
the investigation was executed simultaneously elsewhere.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

 
418 VILLA DR 
This apartment unit within the Arbor One apartment complex off LeForge Rd is owned by Arbor 
One 18, LLC of Ypsilanti.  It was also the scene of a narcotics trafficking search warrant by 
LAWNET and the Sheriff’s Office CAT Team on March 29, 2019.  Officers seized a loaded pistol, 
cash and methamphetamines, some of which were being flushed down a toilet when officers 
entered the apartment.  The target of the investigation was arrested inside the unit and 
criminal charges are pending. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Both of these cases were administratively approved for circuit court litigation, and petitions 
have been filed.  Formal authorization is now requested to abate these public nuisances and 
help safeguard the community by padlocking the apartment units for up to one year as 
authorized by state law. 







CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
OF YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-21 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard to enter Rolling Hills on Friday, June 21, 2019 from 6:30 p.m. to 
7:15 p.m. for the Oberun 5K to benefit Karen’s Trail/Friends of the Border 
to Border Trail. 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





From : mandy@rfevents.com
Subject : RE: Oberun - Road 

Crossing Application
To : 'Lisa Stanfield' 

<lstanfield@ytown.org>

Zimbra lstanfield@ytown.org

RE: Oberun - Road Crossing Application

Mon, Apr 29, 2019 01:53 PM 

External images are not displayed.   Display images below

Hi Lisa – 6:30pm – 7:15pm. 

From: Lisa Stanfield <lstanfield@ytown.org> 
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2019 1:42 PM
To: Mandy Hetfield <mandy@rfevents.com>
Subject: Re: Oberun - Road Crossing Application

Hi Mandy, 

Can I get a time frame for the road closure?

Thanks,
Lisa

Lisa Stanfield
Deputy Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Dr.
Ypsilanti, MI 48197
(734) 484-4700

Page 1 of 4Zimbra

4/29/2019https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=111450&tz=America/New_York



From: "Mandy Hetfield" <mandy@rfevents.com>

To: "Lisa Stanfield" <lstanfield@ytown.org>

Sent: Monday, April 22, 2019 10:23:55 AM

Subject: Oberun - Road Crossing Application

Hi Lisa –
This a request for the summer event: Oberun 5K.

This event has been able to  donate more than $18,000 to 
the Friends of the Border to Border Trail!

We are looking to get put on the list for Board approval for 
an upcoming meeting 

This is our 3rd  year doing this event.

We will be submitting our permit application to Wash Co 
soon and they will need Ytown board approval.  

Event: Oberun 5K

Date: Friday, June 21, 2019

Start/Finish & parking: Wiard’s Orchard

Distances: 5k

Expected # of participants: 2,500

Map: Attached, the only road we go on is Merritt 
and this is only to cross from Wiard’s Orchard to 
Rolling Hills. 

Page 2 of 4Zimbra

4/29/2019https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=111450&tz=America/New_York



Time Frame: 5K will start at 6:30pm. All runners will 
be across and back into Wiards by 7:15pm. 

The race benefits Karen’s Trail/Friends of the 
Border to Border Trail

There will be course marshals at the road crossing 
to ask traffic to hold until runners cross.  

There will also be “Runners on Road” crossing signs 
to warn vehicles before they get to the runners.

Randal Step, owner of R.F. Events, as the official 
designee for this event

Please let me know what other information you need. 
Thank you for turning this around to WCRC for this event. 

Thank you!

Mandy

Mandy Hetfield
RF Events
5700 Jackson Rd
Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Page 3 of 4Zimbra

4/29/2019https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=111450&tz=America/New_York



CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
OF YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-22 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 

 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard on Saturday, October 12, 2019 from 8:30a.m. to 10:30a.m. for the 
Run Scream Run 5K, 10K and Kid’s Mile.  

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





From : mandy@rfevents.com
Subject : RE: Run Scream Run - 

Road Crossing 
Application

To : 'Lisa Stanfield' 
<lstanfield@ytown.org>

Zimbra lstanfield@ytown.org

RE: Run Scream Run - Road Crossing Application

Mon, Apr 29, 2019 01:53 PM 

External images are not displayed.   Display images below

8:30am til 10:30am. 
Thanks!

From: Lisa Stanfield <lstanfield@ytown.org> 
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2019 1:43 PM
To: Mandy Hetfield <mandy@rfevents.com>
Subject: Re: Run Scream Run - Road Crossing Application

Hi, 

Can I get a time from for this road closure, as well?

Thanks,
Lisa

Lisa Stanfield
Deputy Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Dr.
Ypsilanti, MI 48197
(734) 484-4700

Page 1 of 4Zimbra

4/29/2019https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=111451&tz=America/New_York



From: "Mandy Hetfield" <mandy@rfevents.com>

To: "Lisa Stanfield" <lstanfield@ytown.org>

Sent: Monday, April 22, 2019 10:27:21 AM

Subject: Run Scream Run - Road Crossing Application

Hi Lisa –

We are looking forward to another great event! Getting 
this to you early, hoping you can get approval for both 
events at the same time. 

We are looking to get put on the list for Board approval in 
an upcoming meeting. 

This is our 9th year doing this event and everything has 
always worked out great!

We will be submitting our permit application to Wash Co 
soon and they will need Ytown board approval.  

Event: Run, Scream, Run

Date: Saturday, October 12, 2019

Start/Finish & parking: Wiard’s Orchard

Distances: 5k/10k, Kid’s Mile (1 Mile will cross into 
Rolling Hills)

Expected # of participants: 2,000

Page 2 of 4Zimbra

4/29/2019https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=111451&tz=America/New_York



Map: Attached, the only road we go on is Merritt 
and this is only to cross from Wiard’s Orchard to 
Rolling Hills. 

Time Frame: 5k/10k will start together at 8:30am 
first runners can be expected in Rolling Hills shortly 
after that.  All races should be finished and packed 
up by 11:00am

The race once again benefits a local charity. 

There will be course marshals at the road crossing 
to ask traffic to hold until runners cross.  

There will also be “Runners on Road” crossing signs 
to warn vehicles before they get to the runners.

Randal Step, owner of R.F. Events, as the official 
designee for this event

Please let me know what other information you need. 
Thank you for turning this around to WCRC for this event. 

Thank you!

Mandy

Mandy Hetfield
RF Events
5700 Jackson Rd
Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Page 3 of 4Zimbra

4/29/2019https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=111451&tz=America/New_York



Charter Township of Ypsilanti

Page 4 of 4Zimbra

4/29/2019https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=111451&tz=America/New_York



415 W. Michigan Avenue 734.544.6748 (P)
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 734.544.6749 (F)

www.washtenaw.org/oced facebook.com/washtenawoced
twitter@WashtenawOCED www.opportunitywashtenaw.org

Collaborative solutions for a promising future

May 2, 2019 CR # 51312-1

Brenda Stumbo
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Dear Ms. Stumbo,

Washtenaw County wishes to amend the contract with your agency.  Corporation Counsel has indicated that this 
amendment could be accomplished by a letter signed by both of us.  If this amendment is agreeable to you, 
please sign and return all copies of this letter.  You will receive an executed copy of this letter upon completion.

Accordingly, I hereby amend the Service Contract between Washtenaw County Brownfield Authority and the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti dated February 19, 2019 and CR # 51312 as follows:

Amend Recitals, D. as follows:

D. At the March 7, 2019 meeting, the Authority approved $2,150 grant to conduct eligible Department 
Specific Activities, and subsequently increased that award to $8,435 at the May 2, 2019 meeting, for the 
property known as 1150 Midway Road, Tax ID# K-11-02-285-001, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 (the “Property”).

           
  Amend TERMS AND CONDITIONS, 1. as follows:
              
1. Grant – The Authority hereby agrees to grant to the Grantee 100% of the costs, up to $8,435, to conduct 

Department Specific Activities within the Property.  The work to be conducted will be in accordance with the 
AKT Peerless proposal No. PF-23909 dated February 5, 2019, and April 22, 2019, both sent to Sara Jo Shipley.  
Any costs above the approved amounts will not be reimbursed.

Amend TERMS AND CONDITIONS, 6. as follows:

6. Disbursement – The Grant funds will be disbursed to the Grantee as approved Department Specific Activities 
are or have been completed, upon submittal by Grantee of a statement of costs of such activities paid or 
incurred from time to time, and receipt of reports, investigations, testing and information in accordance 
with Section 5 above, but not more frequently than monthly.  Such a statement shall include a description of 
eligible work performed, and a copy of invoices for the work described in such statement.  Within forty (40) 
days of a receipt of a complete statement and supporting invoices, brownfield staff shall review the 
statement, confirm that the work done is eligible, and disburse to Grantee the amount set forth in the 
statement, up to a cumulative disbursement not to exceed the amount approved by the Authority, which is 
100% of all eligible costs, up to $8,435.





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2019 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

May 7, 2019 

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $304,357.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $304,357.00

Net Revenues $304,357.00

Expenditures: Highway & ST-Road Construction 101-446-000-818.022 $304,357.00

Net Expenditures $304,357.00

595 - MOTOR POOL FUND Total Increase $20,745.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 595-000-000-699.000 $20,745.00

Net Revenues $20,745.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay/Vehicles 595-595-000-985.000 $20,745.00

Net Expenditures $20,745.00

Request to increase the budget for the purchase of a new 2019 Dodge Ram pick up truck for the Hydro Department 
from the Motor Pool Fund.  The lowest quote for a pick up truck came from VanDyke Ram in the amount of $20,745.  
The Hydro Fund will be paying the motor pool back over a 5 year period.  The purchase will be funded by an 
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance. 

Request to increase the budget for Washtenaw County Road 2nd Agreement for road improvement at; Gault 
Farms, Nancy Park & Shady Knolls subs; West Willow & Turtle Creek Subs; Paint Creek Farms Sub; Deauville 
Parish Sub;  Lay Garden Sub; Creekside Village West Sub; Whispering Meadows Sub; Partridge Creek North Sub; 
and Edison Ave, Packard Road to Burns Avenue.   The total road improvement project is $361,100 with outside 
matching funds of $56,743.07 making the estimated Township expense of $304,356.93. This will be funded by an 
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2019 Budget (#8)  
 
 

 
Move to increase the General Fund budget by $304,357 to $10,038,146 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 

Move to increase the Motor Pool Fund budget by $20,745 to $284,642 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 









 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 


	May 7, 2019
	Chemical Awareness Proclamations
	Work Session Agenda
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	April 16, 2019 Work Session Minutes
	April 16, 2019 Closed Session Minutes
	April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Statements and Checks for May 7, 2019

	Old Business
	2nd Rdg of Res. 2019-20, Proposed Ord. 2019-484

	New Business
	1st. Reading of Res. 2019-06, Proposed Ord. 2019-486 Amending Zoning Ordinance
	Request to Transfer Metro Act Permit from Lightspeed to Metro Fibernet LLC
	Request to Approve Second Agreement with WCRC for Local Road Improvements
	Request to Approve Public Nuisance Abatement
	Request to Approve Public Nuisance Abatement by Padlocking
	Request to Approve Recommended Plant Species List
	Res. 2019-21, Request Temp. Road Closure for Oberun 5K
	Res. 2019-22, Request Temp. Road Closure for Run Scream Run 5K
	Request to Approve Amended Grant Agreement for Skatepark
	Budget Amendment #8

	Authorizations and Bids
	Request to Purchase Truck for Hydro Station

	Other Business



